"',
2") =
WINDSOR

REGIONAL
HOSPITAL

CUTSTANDING CARE
NO EXCEPTIONS!

Mission: Deliver an outstanding patient care experience driven by a passionate commitment to excellence

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Thursday, October 01, 2020
VIA ZOOM: 1700 hours
Windsor, Ontario

TAB TIME ACTION
1. CALL TO ORDER (Paniccia) 1700
2. STRATEGIC PLAN 2021-2024 (Morrow) Tab A 1701
3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 1717
(Paniccia)
4. PREVIOUS MINUTES -September 03, 2020| TabB 1718 MOTION
(Paniccia) (approve)
5. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEOQ (Musyj) Tab C 1719 FYI
6. SCHULICH REPORT (Jacobs) Tab D 1740 FYI
7. EINANCIAL PRESENTATION & TREASURER’S| TabE 1745 FYI
REPORT (Allen)
8. CONSENT AGENDA: MOTION
Finance/Audit & Resources — Sept. 21, 2020 (Allen) Tab F 1755 (accept)
9. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:
e Media Report - FYI only Tab G 1757 FYI
10. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR 1800
NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Paniccia)
11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING:
Thursday, November 05, 2020 - ZOOM 1801 FYI
12. ADJOURNMENT (Paniccia) 1801 MOTION

REGRETS ONLY TO CHERYLE CLARK, Cheryle.clark@wrh.on.ca, or
(519) 254-5577 X56000



mailto:Cheryle.clark@wrh.on.ca

TAB A



WRH Strategic Plan 2021-2024
Report to the Board of Directors

[. Introduction

In March, 2020 the Strategic Planning Steering Committee met to review and discuss
the current Vision, Mission, Values, Strategic Directions and Initiatives with the goal of
creating the new WRH Strategic Plan for 2021 — 2024. (Please see attached
addendum for membership).

Prior to the pandemic the Committee was able to meet, in person, to conduct an
environmental scan, identify top priorities, and provide feedback for an updated vision,
mission, values, and strategic directions. The Committee also asked a small working
group to provide recommendations for revised mission, values, strategic directions and
initiatives statements. When in person meetings were no longer appropriate,
Committee members were provided documents via email and asked to provide
feedback electronically.

[l. Environmental Scan

The Committee gathered information as part of the environmental scan. This included
identifying significant events and forces that have impacted the organization since the
last strategic plan was developed in 2016. Documents were reviewed including
Accreditation Canada Reports, WRH Quality Improvement Plan, survey results from
staff, professional staff, patients and families, and community partners about our
strengths and weaknesses.

All this information was considered and captured during the completion of the SWOT
analysis (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats). Following the initial
SWOT analysis, committee members voted on what they considered the top priorities
that require focused attention during the next strategic plan cycle. These priorities were
used to form the basis of the revised Strategic Directions and Strategic Initiatives.

l1l. WRH Vision

The Committee reviewed the current Vision statement. It was decided that the current
WRH Vision is still relevant and appropriate. In addition, much work has taken place to
successfully engage staff and increase their knowledge and understanding of the
current WRH Vision.

It is therefore recommended that the current WRH Vision be maintained.

Outstanding Care - No Exceptions!



IV. WRH Mission Statement

The Committee asked a small working group to work on revising the mission statement.
The working group discussed, at length, the purpose and utility of a mission statement
and how to better link it with the vision of the hospital. It was noted that, unlike the
vision statement, the mission statement was not well known or well understood by staff
or the community. The Committee thought the mission statement should be pragmatic
and reflect how WRH will fulfill its vision and that the mission statement should reflect
the purpose of the organization.

As a result, the Committee recommends the following as a concise Mission Statement:

Provide quality person-centred health care services to our
community.

V. WRH Values

The Committee also discussed how to make the values ‘come alive’ as our entire
team’s commitment. Also, following the lead of other organizations, acknowledgement
of the territories and lands are also included.

The Committee recommends the following Value Statements:

We respectfully acknowledge the territory that we are on today - the traditional,
ancestral and contemporary lands of the Niswi, Ishkodewan, and Anishinaabeg: The
Three Fires Confederacy (Ojibwe, Odawa, and Potawatomi). We acknowledge the land
and the surrounding waters for sustaining us and we are committed to protecting and
restoring these lands and waters from environmental degradation.

We Value:

Compassion: We show understanding and humility in our care for patients and for
each other. We listen to our patients, their families, and caregivers throughout their
healthcare journey. In every interaction with people in our care we have an opportunity
to show empathy and kindness.

Accountability: We are transparent about the care we provide to those we serve. We
honour our commitments. Taking responsibility for our actions is essential to us.

Respect: We treat others with dignity and build trust as the cornerstone of care. We
collaborate with patients, families and caregivers and uphold confidentiality in all we do.
We respect their autonomy to make informed care decisions. We honour diversity and
inclusivity.

Excellence: We embody a culture of quality and safe person-centered care. We
embrace change and innovation, with a focus on evidence-based best practice. We
foster dynamic partnerships by encouraging research, learning and knowledge sharing.




VI — Strategic Directions and Initiatives

The Committee discussed revisions to strategic directions and initiatives and also gave
the working team the responsibility of refining strategic directions and initiatives. This
work was also based on the initial work completed by the entire Committee. The
Committee also recognized that given this very unusual and challenging time, the Board
may choose to revisit these Directions and Initiatives in the near future, based on the
needs of our community.

Strategic Directions are statements that identify what the organization needs to do to
address the most significant strengths, opportunities, weaknesses and threats. They
define the organization’s priority work and help sharpen the focus of the organization.

Strategic Initiatives are more focused, specific statements that are designed to clearly
direct how the organization will meet their strategic directions, and ultimately fulfill their
vision and mission.

The Strategic Planning Steering Committee recommends the following Strategic
Directions and Initiatives as part of the 2021 -2024 Strategic Plan:

Strategic Direction #1: Strengthen the processes that drive a culture of patient
safety and quality care.

)] Integrate standardized best practices to achieve quality care and outcomes.

i) Lead in the development and performance of patient safety initiatives and
measures.

iii) Lead in the development of strategies and practices that support timely, flexible,

sustainable, and appropriate access to care.

Strategic Direction #2: Uphold the principles of accountability and transparency.

i) Utilize and share the results from the performance indicators to achieve
excellence.
i) Cultivate, sustain, and lead a "Just Culture" across the organization.

iii) Strengthen systems that clearly identify, support, and measure accountability
throughout the organization.

Strategic Direction #3: Maintain a responsive and sustainable corporate financial
strategy.

)] Provide quality care in the most cost efficient way while maximizing revenue
opportunities.
i) Provide ongoing education to the organization and community as to how the

hospital is funded by the Ministry of Health through its funding formulas.
i) Engage the organization to identify and implement best practices within financial
realities.



iv)
v)

Identify and efficiently support and sustain core services.
Develop and implement a long-term strategy for funding capital spending needs.

Strategic Direction #4: Create a dynamic workplace culture that establishes WRH
as an employer of choice.

Foster a respectful, safe, inclusive and collaborative work environment across
the care team.

Build capacity to enhance a sustainable workforce with a focus on talent
acquisition, retention, and succession planning.

Develop strategies to optimize attendance, support and nurture a healthy and
engaged workforce.

Strategic Direction #5: Redefine our collaboration with external partners to build a
better healthcare ecosystem™.

i)
i)

Collaborate with local, regional, and provincial partners to deliver an
innovative, seamless system of care.

Develop opportunities for education and evidence-based research to build an
academic healthcare system that attracts and retains professionals from all
disciplines.

(*Note: Working group felt that the previous strategic direction was very limited and did not reflect
what the initiatives include. Ecosystem is a current phrase that is being used to reflect the
interconnectedness among healthcare providers, patients and families.)

Strategic Direction #6: Continue the pursuit of NEW state —of- the-art acute
care facilities.

Design the facilities to meet or exceed the standards related to healthcare
facility planning, engineering, and design.

Ensure the design incorporates leading edge practices, technologies and
equipment.

Design the facilities to support excellence and innovation in healthcare
research and education.

Ensure effective and meaningful participation of staff, professional staff,
volunteers, patients, academic partners and the community.

Maximize use of current facilities to provide the best possible patient care.
Work with the WRH Foundation to ensure that a plan is in place to raise the
funds required for state-of-the-art equipment/technologies.



Appendix

Strategic Planning Steering Committee- Membership

Group

Members

Board of Directors

Anthony Paniccia
Dan Wilson
Genevieve Isshak
Michael Lavoie
Paul Lachance

Senior Leadership

David Musyj

Karen McCullough
Dr. Wassim Saad
Mark Fathers
Monica Staley-Liang
Rosemary Petrakos
Karen Riddell

Mark Ferrari
Jonathan Foster
Theresa Morris

Patients and Families

Darbara Hebert
Diane Marley

Medical Advisory Committee

Dr. Deljit Dhanoa

Dr. Greg Hasen

Dr. lan Mazzetti

Dr. Larry Jacobs

Dr. Akram El Keilani

Dr. Marguerite Chevalier
Dr. Michael Winger

Medical Directors and
Professional Staff

Dr. Phillip Tremblay
Dr. Jody Stasko
Dr. Ayodeji Akinlaja

Administrative Directors &
Leaders

Gina Bulcke
Nicole Krywionek
Gisele Seguin
Adam Paglione
Angela D’Alessandro
Bradie Cox
Dayna Eagen
Erika Vitale
Jessica Bennett,
Laura D’Alimonte
Nicole Sbrocca




Priyanka Philip
Mike Reinkober
Linda Morrow (Facilitator)

Union Leadership Donna Maclnnis
Richard Baillargeon
Sandy Pasciuta

Susan Bohnert Hamelin

Working Group Members Paul Lachance

Gisele Seguin

Nicole Krywionek

Nicole Sbrocca

Linda Morrow (facilitator)




TAB B



TAB C



WINDSOR Report of the President & CEO

REGIONAL to the Board of Directors
HOSPITAL

OUTSTAMNDING CARE
MNO EXCEPTIONS!

Date: October 2020

Update Strategic Plan

At the October Board meeting there will be a presentation on the draft 2021-2024 Strategic Plan
to our Board of Directors. We will send out the report and video explaining the report after the
Board meeting. As we have stated, a Strategic Plan serves as a fundamental guide to decision-
making and offers a clear direction on how the hospital fulfills its Vision and Mission while
living its Values. We were fortunate enough to get a substantial amount of the planning done
prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. Stay tuned for more details.

Status of Wave 2 or successive Waves

Last updated: Sep 20, 2020 at 10:26 a.m.

Daily new cases

This data is not cumulative - each bar/number shows how many new
cases were reported on a single day.

Graph Table Download #*

Number of cases
-y
S
=]

v

|

2

|
: w [T v——
&‘@ X S o R

K

Page 1 of 4

Proud Recipient of Accreditation with Exemplary Standing - Accreditation Canada

2019-2023




As we prepare for an increase of COVID-19 cases, the question is posed what impact will this
have on Hospital services.

Even though we have seen a spike in COVID-19 positive cases, the number of hospitalizations
has not increased — even though it is a “lagging indicator” — meaning it will follow a spike in
cases by a couple weeks.

Comparing active and hospitalized
cases

This data is not cumulative - each dot/number shows how many cases
were active or hospitalized on a single day.

Graph Table Download #
® Active (including hospitalized) [ ] Hospitalized (including in ICU)

6,000
» 5000
% 4,000

2 3,000
5 s

a 2
E 2,000 &
]

z
1,000

However, during the height of the Ontario COVID-19 cases in April some ~ 17% of the cases
were hospitalized. As of September 20, this number of hospitalizations to positive COVID-19
cases was ~ 2%. As outlined in the attached article, it could be the result of the age of the
current positive COVID-19 patients (~2/3 under 40 years of age;1/3 in their 20’s even though
they make up only 14% of Province’s population) and also the improved work that is happening
with testing and contact tracing to stop the spread to more vulnerable

populations. https://apple.news/AKWo7nwVNRx67nq2LCU4TFw. As stated in the attached
article, it is too early to draw definitive conclusions.

This same trend applies to ICU COVID-19 patients.

Page 2 of 4

Proud Recipient of Accreditation with Exemplary Standing - Accreditation Canada

2019-2023



https://apple.news/AkWo7nwVNRx67nq2LCU4TFw

Comparing hospitalized and in-ICU
cases

This data is not cumulative - each dot/number shows how many cases
were hospitalized or in the ICU on a single day.

Graph Table Download #
@ Hospitalized (including In Icu) ®nn cy

1,200
" oy
§ 00 r (R ey
3 o e,
5 g0 @ L
-E .‘: ""‘r

s

Ry g,

o

N
e g = &

Since my report is written a week before the Board meeting — a week is like a lifetime in
COVID-19 - see this link for up-to-date data to see if this trend continued. https://covid-
19.ontario.ca/data

Fall Plan Ontario

As | am typing my report, the Province is announcing its “Fall Plan” for our healthcare system.
I will be able to talk more about the Fall Plan at the actual Board meeting.

The first part of the plan was announced to promote influenza vaccinations. As healthcare
workers this is the year we need to set the example for our community. In the past our
vaccination rates usually land about 40%.

As stated by the Province and world leaders — getting the flu vaccine will help reduce the
impact of a second wave. Having influenza cases and COVID-19 cases at the same time could

be problematic for the healthcare system. We have to reduce the impact together.

Testing Testing Testing

Issues related to access to COVID-19 testing and getting timely results continue to impact our
international jurisdictions.

The current “gold standard” is polymerase chain reaction (PCR).
https://www.healthing.ca/diseases-and-conditions/coronavirus/nose-or-spit-the-kinds-of-covid-
19-tests-and-what-we-can-count-on

Page 3 of 4

Proud Recipient of Accreditation with Exemplary Standing - Accreditation Canada

2019-2023



https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://www.healthing.ca/diseases-and-conditions/coronavirus/nose-or-spit-the-kinds-of-covid-19-tests-and-what-we-can-count-on
https://www.healthing.ca/diseases-and-conditions/coronavirus/nose-or-spit-the-kinds-of-covid-19-tests-and-what-we-can-count-on

There are many other concepts in the queue that are being examined to increase access and also
reduce turnaround times for results.

The BC model of swishing saline and gargling is a promising one for younger folks who
probably would go once for a nasal swab and never again. However, it uses PCR for the actual
testing. https://bc.ctvnews.ca/gargle-test-for-covid-19-works-for-adults-as-well-as-children-
researcher-says-1.5111012

Also, in the United States the antigen method has been approved for use. It allows for generally
swabbing an individual’s mouth and receiving immediate results. Could eventually be done at
home. However, as it stands the false negative and false positive rates are high.
https://www.cbc.ca/news/politics/canada-covid-19-testing-devices-1.5726686

Ontario is pushing for antigen approval. https://globalnews.ca/news/7346078/doug-ford-health-
canada-rapid-covid-19-tests/

An interesting concept is what is happening at Cornell.
https://www.goodmorningamerica.com/wellness/video/cornell-university-exclusive-contained-
covid-19-73163035

The background is explained here.
https://www.ithacajournal.com/story/news/local/2020/08/31/cornell-covid-19-testing-
coronavirus-process-students/3442490001/

Also, serological testing (anti body testing) is approved for non-diagnostic testing in Canada. It
is meant to identify if you possibly had COVID-19 in the past and have some anti-bodies
present. https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-health-products/covid19-
industry/medical-devices/testing/serological.html

Page 4 of 4

Proud Recipient of Accreditation with Exemplary Standing - Accreditation Canada

2019-2023



https://bc.ctvnews.ca/gargle-test-for-covid-19-works-for-adults-as-well-as-children-researcher-says-1.5111012
https://bc.ctvnews.ca/gargle-test-for-covid-19-works-for-adults-as-well-as-children-researcher-says-1.5111012
https://www.cbc.ca/news/politics/canada-covid-19-testing-devices-1.5726686
https://globalnews.ca/news/7346078/doug-ford-health-canada-rapid-covid-19-tests/
https://globalnews.ca/news/7346078/doug-ford-health-canada-rapid-covid-19-tests/
https://www.goodmorningamerica.com/wellness/video/cornell-university-exclusive-contained-covid-19-73163035
https://www.goodmorningamerica.com/wellness/video/cornell-university-exclusive-contained-covid-19-73163035
https://www.ithacajournal.com/story/news/local/2020/08/31/cornell-covid-19-testing-coronavirus-process-students/3442490001/
https://www.ithacajournal.com/story/news/local/2020/08/31/cornell-covid-19-testing-coronavirus-process-students/3442490001/
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-health-products/covid19-industry/medical-devices/testing/serological.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-health-products/covid19-industry/medical-devices/testing/serological.html

TAB D



University
of Windsor

S Schulich

MEDICINE & DENTISTRY
Windsor Campus

Update to WRH Board of Directors (October 1, 2020)

e Dean John Yoo is planning a visit to Windsor on November 12 and 13 (COVID permitting) for
a hospital leadership and faculty meet and greet. Details to follow as they become
available.

e On September 30, the School held an “Addressing Racism at the Schulich School of Medicine
and Dentistry” retreat. Windsor Campus Students, Faculty and staff were invited and
contributed to the discussion.

e The Windsor Campus continues to work with the University of Windsor and the WECHU in
providing safe face to face learning where possible. The University of Windsor has recently
announced plans to keep the vast majority of students online in the second semester.
Medical students do have specific needs and so we will continue to plan for face to face
sessions where it is important.

e Interviews for the new Windsor Campus manager were completed on September 28. We
hope to announce the successful candidate soon.

Respectfully submitted,

Lawrence Jacobs, MD, FRCPC, FACP
Associate Dean, Windsor Campus
Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western University.

Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry — Windsor Campus
Dr. Murray O’Neil Medical Education Centre, Room 1100, 401 Sunset Ave., Windsor, ON, Canada N9B 3P4

Telephone: 519-561-1411 Fax: 519-561-1413 www.uwindsor.ca/medicine ‘ N 7estern
*



TAB E



L

WINDSOR
REGIONAL
HOSPITAL

Finance/Audit & Resources Financial Presentation
Board of Directors Meeting
October 1, 2020




Payroll Results - $3.3M Deficit

$3.28M Pandemic Pay in July

$3.77M Pandemic Pay in August

Payroll Variance

April May June July August

0 —

-1000
-2000

-3000

-4000

-5000

-6000

wmmnTarget s €Monthly Variance —e====YTD Variance




Volumes
Patient Days

Year-to-Date Patient Days are 12% below plan

Normalized Patient Days

18,000
17,000

16,000
15,000
14,000
13,000
12,000
11,000
10,000

April May June July Aug

B Prior Year WM Fiscal 2020-21  ====Plan




Financial Results — Hospital Operations
August 31, 2020

Current Year $ Variance % Variance
Actual Budget Fav/(Unfav) Fav/(Unfav)

Revenue $ 224,374 $ 223,686 $ 688 0.3%
Expenses
Salaries and Wages $ 108,053 $ 102,927 $ (5,126) (5.0%)
Employee benefits 27,581 26,052 (1,529) (5.9%)
Employee ben. - future ben. costs 805 805 - 0.0%
Medical staff remuneration 21,112 21,563 451 2.1%
Medical & Surgical supplies 13,220 15,300 2,080 13.6%
Drugs 26,278 25,123 (1,155) (4.6%)
Supplies & other expenses 25,290 25,888 598 2.3%
Long term Interest 614 662 48 7.3%
Equipment lease / rental 2,221 993 (1,228) (123.7%)
Equipment amortization 3,677 3,665 88 2.4%
Total Expense $ 228,751 $ 222978 $ (5,773) (2.6%)
Surplus / (Deficiy From Hospital Operations _$ (4377 $ U Cia)
e e e ™ 15 1607 s 160
revenue oss inciuded sbove. 1S 40% O AT
{YTD - Unearned Ministry volume funding -: $ 3,300 $ - '$ (3,300)
‘Surplus or (Deficit) / Revenue ) -1.95% 0.32% 2.27%




Financial Results
August 31, 2020

Year-to-Date results include $11.6M for COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses. Revenue losses

total S8M.
Windsor Regional Hospital
COVID-19 Expenses Year-to-Date August 2020
Funded Unfunded
Compensation - 5,383,257
Pandemic Pay 7,004,086 -
Medical Staff Fees 252,000 -
Med. Surg. Supplies - 2,636,474
Drugs - 70,142
Other supplies & expense - 1,209,149
Equipment Expenses - 1,390,268
Renovations - 917,930
Total Operating Expense 7,256,086 11,607,220
Capital - S 2,349,425
Combined Total S 7,256,086 $ 13,956,645

* %k

%k k

Windsor Regional Hospital

COVID-19 Revenue Loss Year-to-Date August 2020
Funded Unfunded

Volume Based* - 3,294,609

Patient Services** - 3,003,787

Recoveries*** - 1,682,284

Total Revenue - S 7,980,680

Quality Based Procedures, Neuro Services, Cardiac & Wait Time
Preferred Accommodation, Co-Payment, OHIP Technical &
Professional Fees, & Cosmetic Procedures

Parking, Retail Food Services, Gift Shop, Leased Office Space
(Physician), Patient Televisions, Print Shop & Referred In Services
(Other Hospitals)



Financial Results
August 31, 2020

> Base and One-Time Funding $3,908K favourable

> S2M in QBP revenue not earned as a result of elective surgery cancellations in April and May as well as lower
than planned volumes from June to August

° QOperating Room volumes are 7,345 lower than planned to date
> Remaining shortfall in neuroservices, cardiac and wait time which are all volume-based
> One-time funding is $7.2M favourable year to date due to:

> Funding received for 2018/19 physician retro payments which were paid out as Medical Staff
Remuneration

> One-time funding for Pandemic Pay of S7M
o Patient Services $2.2M unfavourable
o Ministry Drug Reimbursements favourable $752K

o Other Recoveries $503K unfavourable
o Reduction of services has effected parking and retail operations

o Overall Revenue is favourable year to date by $688,000



Financial Results
August 31, 2020

o Salary and Wages $5.1M unfavourable
> $1.8M unfavourable in the month of August with $3.77M attributable to the second installment of

pandemic pay
> Year-to-Date spending on COVID-19 isolation pay - $561K
o COVID-19 Sick pay - $373K
o Training for temporary new hires - $303K

> $1.63M has been paid to COVID Helpers to date
o Net Patient Services Revenue and Medical Staff Remuneration $1.76M unfavourable due to service
reductions and was only $23K unfavourable in the month of August

> Med Surg Supplies $2.08M Favourable
o Savings have been incurred in the perioperative programs due to volume reductions:
o Met Campus $1.04M

o Quellette Campus S1.8M
> Incremental spending on Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) in the first five months of the year is

$2.05M.




Financial Results
August 31, 2020

Year to Date Expenses
> Drugs $1.16M Unfavourable
° Chemo and Renal drug expenses and recoveries are balanced
o Retail pharmacy net drug expense to revenue is $48,000 favourable

> Drug expenses for clinical areas at the Met campus are $161K under budget and at the Ouellette
campus $426K favourable year to date.

> Other Supplies and Expenses $598K Favourable

> Minor equipment purchases $1,046,000 related to COVID-19

> $897K in one time set up costs for the St. Clair College Field Hospital
> Rental/Lease of Equipment $1.28M Unfavourable

> Bed rentals to ensure capacity for COVID-19 S465K

> Bed rentals for St. Clair College Field Hospital S780K



Patient Access
August 31, 2020

YTDActual  Target Variance
Met Campus
Acute Average LOS 437 494 017
Psych Average - Adolescent
L0S 6.99 6.44 (0.55)
Ouellette Campus
Actte Average LOS 191 133 (058)
Psyoh Average - Adut LOS 1259 1243 (0.16)




Patient Volume
August 31, 2020

Aug 2020  Aug.2019  Varianceto
Actual Actual Prior Year

Met Campus
Total Weighted Cases (estimated) 7588 10,108 (2520)
Acute Patient Days 29,441 34,423 (4,982)
ED Visits and Holds 17,962 22,510 (4,548)
QOuellette Campus
Total Weighted Cases (estimated) 7,609 10,999 (3,390)
Acute Patient Days 29,189 34,739 (5,550)
ED Visits and Holds 17,710 22,113 (5,003)




Organizational Health
August 31, 2020

YTD Actual Target Variance

Met Campus

% Sick Time 5.70% 3.70% (2.00%)
% Overtime 2.20% 2.30% 0.10%
FTE Staffing 1,657.6 17123 54,67
Quellette Campus

% Sick Time 6.40% 3.70% (2.70%)
% Overtime 4.50% 2.30% (2.20%)
FTE Staffing 1406.3 14237 1740

Red and Green year to date are showing Green/better than or Red/worse than prior month



WINDSOR REGIONAL HOSPITAL
OUTSTANDING CARE -~ NO EXCEPTIONS!

Treasurer’s Report
Board of Directors

Financial Summary - August 2020

($000's)
August 2020 Actuals
Line Actual Budget Variance *
Hospital Ops
Total Revenue 91| $224,374 | $ 223,686 | $ 688
Total Expense 20 228,751 222,978 (5,773)
Surplus / (Deficit) 21 (4,377) 708 (5,085)
Other Votes (net) 22 (6) (30) 24
Other Recoveries / (Exp) 23 (256) - (256)
Subtotal 24 (4,639) 678 (5,317)
Net bldg. amortization 25 (673) (740) 67
Net Surplus (Deficit) 26 |$ (5312)| % (62)| $ (5,250)
(Hospital Margin [$ 4025]$ 1340[$ (5365)

(Capital Equipment Expenditures  [[$ 8449 [$ 15383[$ (6,934)|

* Variance - favourable / (unfavourable)

Operational Highlights

1. The operating results for the month ended August 31, 2020 resulted in a deficit of $5,312,000 ($4,025,000 Negative
Hospital Margin) based on MoH definition. There are four significant revenue factors reflected in these. results.

a. With respect to 2020-2021, the Ministry has committed to date to the funding that was recommended in the
Optimization Review Report with the exception of the $5 million in one time funding. Five months of this revenue has
been accrued to date ($2,083,000).

b. Patient sevices and preferred accommodation revenue is $3,507,000 below plan as a result of COVID-19.
Diagnostic revenues are well below plan as volumes were scaled back considerably and inpatient volumes were
significantly decreased as WRH created capacity for pandemic patient by cancelling elective surgeries.

d. Recoveries are $503,000 below plan due to decreased revenue in retail pharmacies, parking and retail food services
as a result of COVID-19.

2. Year to date salary and wages have a negative variance of $5,126,000 or 5.0%. The two segments of pandemic pay
covering the period of April 24, 2020 to August 13, 2020 in the amount of $7,004,000 is included in the year to date
expense. These payment are funded by the Ministry of Health.

3. Medical/Surgical Supplies are favourable $2,080,000 mainly due to elective surgery volumes reductions
implemented to create capacity for potential COVID-19 surge.

4. Other Supplies and Expenses are favourable $598,000 year to date. Prior month deficits were attributable to minor
equipment purchases and renovation costs due to COVID-19 and one time set up costs for the St. Clair College Field
Hospital.

5. Equipment lease/rental is over budget by $1,228,000 as additional beds were rented for the St. Clair College Field
Hospital and the Met and Ouellette sites in preparation for a possible surge in volumes due to the pandemic.

Penny Allen, Chair & Treasurer, Finance/Audit & Resources Committee
October 1, 2020



TAB F



i,
WINDSOR

REGIONAL
HOSPITAL

OUTSTANDING CARE —
NG EXCEPTIONS!

MOTION/ACTION SHEET
From The

FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING
General Session

Monday, September 21, 2020

THERE ARE NO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

Finance/Audit & Resources Committee — September 21, 2020



wr,
25,
WINDSOR

REGIONAL
HOSPITAL

OUTSTANDING CARE —
NG EXCEPTIONS!

MINUTES from the meeting of the FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE (General
Session) held on Monday, September 21, 2020 Via Zoom.

PRESENT:

Penny Allen Beth Yeh
Arvind Arya Dianne Aziz
Dr. Laurie Freeman Ian McLeod

Dr. Larry Jacobs
Paul Lachance

Anthony Paniccia, Chair of the Board

REGRETS:
Sandra Boglitch

STAFF:

David Musyj
Mark Fathers
Heidi Zimmer
Kevin Marshall
Mary Macera

1.0 CALLTO ORDER

Mrs. Allen called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m.
The proceedings were recorded by Mary Macera.

2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOVED by Paul Lachance, SECONDED by Laurie Freeman that the General
Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Agenda of Monday, September 21, 2020
be approved.
CARRIED.

3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No “Conflict of Interest” was declared.

4.0 PRESENTATIONS

There were No Presentations.

Finance/Audit & Resources Committee — September 21, 2020



Page Two

5.0

FOR APPROVAL /| RECOMMENDATION

5.1

Minutes of Previous Meeting — Monday, August 24, 2020

The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Minutes of the General Meeting of Monday,
August 24, 2020 were previously circulated to all members.

MOVED by Ian McLeod, SECONDED by Arvind Arya that the General Meeting
Minutes from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, August 24,
2020 be approved.

CARRIED.

. FOR DISCUSSION

6.0

6.1

Monthly Operating Results Report — August 31, 2020 (As Appended)

Ms. Zimmer provided the financial presentation.

v

v

AN

The operating results for the five months ended August 31, 2020 result in a deficit of
$5,312,000 ($4,025,000 negative hospital margin).

There are two items to note: Operating results include $14.9 million in higher operating
costs and lost revenues attributable to COVID. WRH received funding details for the
2020-2021 fiscal year in June 2020. All was confirmed with the exception of the $5
million in one-time funding.

Payroll variance of $3.3 million; includes $7 million in pandemic pay (entirely funded by
the Ministry of Health). Pandemic pay was paid out in two segments, one in July and
one in August.

Normalized Patient Days are somewhat below plan; year-to-date 12% below plan.
$14.9 million includes revenue loss as well. Details on the $14.9 million were provided
with those segments that are funded and those that are not; $14.9 million in operating
and $2.3 million in capital for a total of $17.2 million unfunded.

LHIN has supported our (WRH) submission for expenses incurred for the field hospital.
This will add another $1.4 million for a total of $16.2 million (this will be
updated/reflected for next month).

QBPs are $2 million unfavourable due to volume reductions.

Revenue — base and one-time is $3.9 million favourable.

Patient services - $2.2 million unfavourable due to Diagnostic Imaging, Preferred
Accommodations, just to name a few.

Ministry drug reimbursements is favourable by $752,000 (due to chemo suite and renal
program).

Other recoveries is $503,000 unfavourable (retail services, Tim Horton’s, Subway,
Parking, etc.).

Salaries and wages is $5.1 million unfavourable; $3.7 million for pandemic pay paid
out.

COVID isolation pay - $561,000; COVID sick - $373,000 and training for new hires is at
$373,000; $1.63 million out to COVID helpers.

Finance/Audit & Resources Committee — September 21, 2020



Page Three

6.2

Med/surg supplies are favourable.

Drugs - $1.16 million unfavourable; clinical areas somewhat under budget.

Other supplies/expenses - $598,000 favourable.

Rental/lease of equipment — unfavourable.

Met campus — psych — saw some slight increases.

Weighted cases are lower than planned at both campuses due to reduced volumes;
same for patient days and ED visits (although starting to pick up).

Sick time for both campuses — improvement at both campuses over previous month.
Overtime slightly declined in the current month at Ouellette; favourable at Met.

DN N N NN

AN

As part of the discussions surrounding the COVID expenses, slide 5 of Ms. Zimmer's
presentation was further reviewed. Mr. Musyj wanted to clarify the revenue part which is
$4.686; $3 million of the $4.686 is not earned because we did not do those volumes. It
was confirmed that QBPs are not included in that number. Administration will make some
minor changes to the presentation to add further clarity.

Mr. Musyj commented that the government may look at our COVID expenses at the end
of the year and instead of cutting a cheque for COVID expenses, they may suggest to take
monies not spent on QBPs and give us $.080 on a dollar as an example.

Total expenses for COVID is currently at $10.2; not included is the staff costs for the field
hospital of $1.4 million. Staff working at the field hospital at the time was not additional
staff; they were redeployed staff and not included in our operating costs. The theory is if
the staff was not utilized at the field hospital, we would have sustained layoffs due to no
volumes, so in essence, there was a cost to us to place staff in the field hospital due to
COVID.

Mr. Musyj continued that he has been hearing across the province, scandalous numbers
related to reimbursement requests that have been all over the map. It was suggested that
on these charts moving forward to the next meeting, explanation(s) is/are to be provided
for “before COVID, finance would have looked like ....... " we would have had a healthy
surplus.

The Finance Committee was asked to digest this information and feel free to ask any
questions as they come up. Mr. Musyj concluded that we will need to keep on top of this
as numbers will become confusing.

In October, we will attempt to bring forth a Budget Risk Item(s) Schedule.

Health Infrastructure Renewal Fund

Mr. Marshall commented that WRH has received a letter from the Ministry of Health
confirming receipt of $1,168,227 in one-time funding for 2020-2021 Health Infrastructure
Renewal Fund (HIRF).

Finance/Audit & Resources Committee — September 21, 2020



Page Four

7.0

This fund has been ongoing for over 15 years now, where funds are provided to us to
complete smaller projects as part of our infrastructure; every three years a facilities
assessment is done. The funds must be spent by the year-end. Last year’s funds were
spent on three different projects of which we would like to have these three projects
finished with this year’s funds. Included in the HIRF funding is $300,000 for Exceptional
Circumstances related to a specific roof replacement project.

FOR INFORMATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.0

Broader Public Sector Business Documents (August 27, 2020)

For the committee’s information.

Ontario Health — Patient Perspective & Topline Org Structure (September 9, 2020)

For the committee’s information.

President’s Report (September 2020)

For the community members information.

Windsor Regional Hospital Healthcare Acronyms

A list of WRH Healthcare Acronyms was provided to the committee members. There are
a couple more that will be added to the list.

If an acronym has been missed, please feel free to contact Mary Macera.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee will meet on Monday, October 26, 2020 at 5:00
p-m. Via Zoom.

9.0

ADJOURNMENT

There was no further business; therefore, Mrs. Allen adjourned the meeting at 5:57 p.m.

Mrs. Penny Allen, Chair & Treasurer Mary Macera
FinAudit&Resources_Minutes Recorder
20200921

Finance/Audit & Resources Committee — September 21, 2020



Windsor Regional Hospital

Operating Results Report

For the Five Months Ended August 31, 2020

($000's)
August 2020 Actuals
Line Actual Budget Variance *
Hospital Ops
Total Revenue 9 $224,374 | $ 223686 | $ 688
Total Expense 20 228,751 222,978 (5,773)
Surplus / (Deficit) 21 (4,377) 708 (5,085)
Other Votes (net) 22 ®8) (30) 24
Other Recoveries / (Exp) 23 (256) - (256)
Subtotal 24 (4,639) 678 (5,317)
Net bldg. amortization 25 (673) (740) 67
Net Surplus (Deficit) 26 | $ (5,312)| $ (62)| $ (5,250)
[Hospital Margin |$ (4,025 3 1,340 | $ (5,365)]
[Capital Equipment Expenditures | $ 8,449 $ 15383 [$ (6,934)

Operation Highlights:

e The operating results for the five months ended August 31, 2020 resulted in a deficit
of $5,312,000 ($4,025,000 Negative Hospital Margin) based on MoH definition.
There are two items worth noting -

a. Operating results include $14.9 million in higher costs and lost revenues
attributable to meeting our clinical responsibilities related to COVID-19.
While the Ministry has indicated their intent to cover most of these costs, that
mechanism has yet to be shared with the Ontario hospitals. Revenue losses
have not yet been addressed by the MoH beyond reimbursement for
services provided to uninsured residents. As a result, we have not booked
any recovery at this time other than the recognition of $252,000 for medical
fees flowing under a COVID-19 funding agreement between the Ministry and
the OMA. WRH has paid $7 million for pandemic pay to employees through
August 2020. We have received 75% of the total funding allocation of $7.13
million to date. The difference has been accrued in these statements.

b. WRH received funding details for the 2020-2021 fiscal year on June 4, 2020.
In comparing these details to what was included in our 2020-21 budget for
Ministry funding (which was based on the recommendations in the
Optimization Review Report), all has been confirmed with the exception of



August 31, 2020 Operating Results

the $5 million in one-time funding. Assuming the Ministry will honour the
recommendations in the report, we have accrued five months of this revenue
in the August 2020 results ($2,083,000). A formal follow up letter has been
sent to the Ministry with respect to this one time funding amount. If we did
not accrue this revenue, the deficit would be approximately $7.4 million and
the surplus for the month would be approximately $1.3 million (COVID-19

costs included).

1. Financial Results for the Five Months ended August 31, 2020

(Statement 2)

For the five months ended August 31, 2020, the deficit after net building amortization
is $5,312,000, which is $5,250,000 worse than plan.
Ministry of Health Margin of $4,025,000 (one year ago, this negative margin was $3.5
million). Extraordinary operating expenses and revenue losses related to COVID-19
in the amount of $14.9 million are included in this deficit. In the month of August, the
COVID-19 impact was $2.8 million. Here is a chart that shows the revenue losses and
costs that have been incurred in the period April 1 to August 31, 2020 and which have

been funded or not funded —

This represents a negative

Windsor Regional Hospital
COVID-19 Expenses Year-to-Date August 2020
Funded Unfunded
Revenue
Patient Services 3,003,787
Recoveries 1,682,284
Total Revenue - 4,686,071
Expense
Compensation - 4,303,856
Pandemic Pay 7,004,086 -
Medical Staff Fees 252,000 -
Med. Surg. Supplies - 2,611,628
Drugs = 60,001
Other supplies & expense - 950,022
Equipment Expenses = 1,378,894
Renovations - 917,930
Total Expense 7,256,086 10,222,331
Total Operating S 7,256,086 $ 14,908,401

It should also be noted that with respect to Ministry volume based funding, we have
unearned revenue for these first five (5) months of $3.3 million as compared to $0.8 -

million one year ago.

20f7




August 31, 2020 Operating Resuits

Revenue

Ministry revenue (combined base and one-time) is $3,908,000 higher than budget.
One time funding is favourable year to date, as approximately $7 million in one time
pandemic pay funding has been recognized to date. This funding is offset by wages
and benefits for the two installments of pandemic pay paid to those eligible staff. Early
in the fiscal year, the Ministry directed reduction in Hospital elective services and the
corresponding volume reductions have reduced the amount of revenue earned for
Quality Based Procedures (QBPs), wait time procedures, neuroservices and cardiac
funding. As an example, for QBP funded volumes, our year to date August revenues
are $2 million lower than one year ago.

Ministry drug reimbursements have a positive variance of $752,000 (8.2%). This
revenue comes from the Cancer Centre’s New Drug Funding program and the renal
program. This revenue has been favourable for the last two months and offsets the
corresponding drug expenses in both programs.

The preferred accommodation revenue variance is unfavourable to budget by
$1,280,000 and is tracking lower than last year by $1,352,000. Lower occupancy due
to the reduced number of elective surgeries contributes to this shortfall, as well as the
Ministry of Health directive that hospitals cannot bill uninsured patients for semi-private
and private accommodation during the pandemic. Previously, uninsured patients
would have paid out of pocket for this accommodation. Infection prevention and control
measures often require patients to be placed in private rooms and we are unable to bill
for this accommodation in these circumstances.

Chronic Co-payment revenue is $18,000 under budget due to the factors mentioned
above for preferred accommodation.

Patient Services revenue variance is $2,209,000 unfavourable (16.7%) year to date.
Diagnostic revenues are well below plan, as outpatient volumes were reduced
significantly due to pandemic restrictions. Inpatient volumes were reduced as elective
surgeries were cancelled in order to create capacity for a potential surge in pandemic
patients.

Equipment Grant amortization is $38,000 (3.5%) higher than budget. Timing of the
receipt of these grants affects their amortization.

Other Recoveries are $503,000 unfavourable (2.8%) to budget. Similar to patient
services, this revenue category was also impacted by the reduction in hospital
services. Revenues were significantly reduced for parking and retail pharmacy and
food operations. Parking fees for staff, physicians and visitors were reinstated in
August and revenue was favourable to budget by $30,000 for the month mainly due to
the timing of the receipt of physician annual parking payments. All three retail
pharmacies (Met, HIV and We Care) were balanced in terms of net drug revenue
relative to drug expenses in the month of August.

30of7



August 31, 2020 Operating Results

Expenses

Salaries are currently over budget (unfavourable) by $5,126,000 (5.0%) year to date
with a negative variance in the month of August of $1,825,000. The second segment
of pandemic pay, which covered the period of June 20, 2020 to August 13, 2020, was
paid in the month of August in the amount of $3,777,000. As mentioned previously,
one-time revenue has been recognized equal to this amount in the month of August.
Although capacity is reduced and volumes have declined, there have been
considerable costs incurred because of COVID-19. Year to date spending for
employees in paid isolation is $561,000, paid sick time due to COVID-19 is $373,000
and training for temporary staff hires totalled $303,000. In total, these temporary hires
(COVID Helpers) have been paid $1,629,000 to date. Staff who normally work in areas
where volumes were reduced had been redeployed to the screening desks, the
COVID-19 Community Assessment Centres and the St. Clair College (SCC) field
hospital. As hospital operations return to normal continuing to staff these areas will
create pressures with respect to staff availability which is being mitigated by the hiring
of temporary full and part-time staff.

Employee Benefits are unfavourable to budget by $1,529,000 (5.9%). The variance is
attributable to the wage variance.

Employee Future Benefits are currently on budget.

Medical Staff Remuneration is under budget (favourable) by $451,000 (2.1%).
Reduced services in diagnostic departments has resulted in this savings, however, the
associated patient services revenues are also much lower than planned.

Medical & Surgical Supplies are favourable to budget by $2,080,000 (13.6%) year to
date. The perioperative programs at both sites are favourable due to the cancellation
of elective surgeries with the Met campus favourable by $1,036,000 and Ouellette
$1,753,000. In the Diagnostic Departments, Interventional Radiology and the Cardiac
Catheterization Lab are $392,000 to date under budget because of volume decreases.
Due to COVID-19, spending on Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), which is
included in medical & surgical supplies expense, has increased. The incremental cost
for PPE for the first five months of the fiscal year is approximately $2,049,000. It should
be noted that elective surgery cancellations affect the ability to hit QBP funded volumes
and may result in funding having to be returned to the MOH at year-end. For 2020-21,
no determination has yet been made regarding the Ministry's recovery policy for
volume-based procedures due to COVID-19.

Drug expenses are over budget (unfavourable) by $1,155,000 (4.6%) as the activity in
the retail pharmacies, chemotherapy suite and the renal program are returning to pre-
COVID-19 levels. In the month of August, drug expenses were 13% favourable at the
Met Campus inpatient and outpatient departments and 15% favourable at the Ouellette
Campus. Drug expenses are 16% below budget in clinical departments year to date.

4 of 7



August 31, 2020 Operating Results

Supplies and Other Expenses are favourable to budget by $598,000 (2.3%). Included
in these costs are minor equipment purchases ($1,046,000) and one-time St. Clair
College Field Hospital set up costs ($897,000) related to COVID-19 activity. As an
offset, laundry costs are lower than budget by $156,000 and lab supply costs are
$197,000 under budget both due to lower inpatient and outpatient volumes. Referred
out expenses for hip and knee replacements under the “Bundled Care” model are
favourable $393,000 to date due to the postponement of the related surgeries. These
expenses relate to post-surgical services for inpatient rehabilitation, home care and
outpatient physiotherapy. Utility costs are $896,000 under budget due to the energy
rebate. This rebate expires at the end of October 2020. Courier costs are $166,000
over budget and includes the costs related to sending COVID-19 tests to London for
analysis. These additional costs are being included as part of our COVID-19 cost
submissions to the Ministry.

Long-term Interest expense is $48,000 (7.3%) under budget. This is due to the interest
rate on the capital loans (2.46%) being lower than budgeted (3.26%).

Equipment Lease/Rental is $1,228,000 unfavourable to budget (123.7%). This is due
to the rental of beds to increase capacity in preparation for COVID-19 and to equip the
St. Clair College Field Hospital with 100 beds.

Equipment amortization is $88,000 under budget (2.4%).
Other Votes — Other Votes are $24,000 favourable.

Other Recoveries |/ (Expenses) — consistent with the year financial statement
presentation. We have segregated the legal fees related to a particular legal case.
Year to date August 2020, these expenses amount to $256,000.

2. Statement of Financial Position (Statement 3)

On April 30, 2020, we received a $35 million Ministry cash advance that must be fully
repaid by the end of the fiscal year. This cash advance had reduced the need to use
the line of credit, but as indicated on Statement 5, the line of credit was used for thirty-
one (31) days in the month of August at an average balance of $15,006,000. A
contributing factor is the Ministry funding cash flow to date did not include the new
funding for fiscal 2020-21 until the August 31, 2020 payment. Also the additional
COVID-19 expenses which have yet to be reimbursed adding to the stress on the credit
line. We reached out to the LHIN and will be getting an additional $10.0 million cash
advance by September 30" that will be repaid most likely in January 2021 (details to
be confirmed).

Our inventory balance as at August 31 is $6,657,000 higher than March 31 and

includes $5.3 million in masks. The remaining difference relates to bulk purchases of
linen inventory, PPE and higher drug inventory related to COVID-19 preparation.

Sof7



August 31, 2020 Operating Results

Our Ministry / CCO receivable has increased by $8.3 million and includes $1.8 million
related to the confirmed base funding increase yet to be cash flowed along with $2
million related to the one time funding yet to be confirmed. The remaining $4.5 million
is receivable from CCO mainly for reimbursement of qualifying drug expenses.

3. Patient Volumes (Met Campus only)

Acute care patient days are 4,982 lower than both the budget and the same period
last year. Combined ED visits and holds for the year are 4,840 below budget and
4,548 fewer than last year at this time. Acute separations are 3,052 lower than plan,
and are 1,215 lower than one year ago. Combined OR Inpatient and Day Surgery
cases are 3,132 cases lower than plan. Ambulatory and community visits are 8,486
below plan and 8,015 lower than one year ago. Weighted cases are estimated to be
2,792 lower than plan and 2,520 lower than one year ago.

Patient Volumes (Ouellette Campus only)

Acute care patient days are 5,302 days below budget year to date and 5,550 days
lower than the same period last year. Acute separations are 4,075 lower than plan
and 955 lower than last year. Mental health patient days are 471 days higher than
budget and the same period last year. OR Inpatient and Day Surgery cases are
currently 5,524 lower than plan. ED visits and holds at Ouellette are 4,942 below
budget and 5,003 lower than the prior year. Ambulatory visits are 16,466 below
budget and 16,244 visits lower than prior year. Community visits are 29,011 above
plan, as this includes 29,640 visits to the COVID-19 Community Assessment Centre.
In the month of August, there were 9,196 visits to the Assessment Centres at the
Ouellette and St. Clair campuses. Weighted cases are estimated to be 3,039 lower
than plan and 3,390 less than one year ago.

Patient Volumes (St. Clair College Field Hospital only)

Acute care patient days at the St. Clair College Field Hospital are 1,568 days and 271
weighted cases. The Field Hospital was closed on June 12, 2020, but is ready to
reopen on a few hours notice.

Patient Access

Acute care length of stay at Met was 4.37 days as compared to a target of 4.54 days.
Lengths of stay for Ouellette acute care was 7.91 days versus a plan of 7.33. Length
of stay for the adult psychiatric patients was 12.59 slightly above the plan of 12.43
days and Maryvale (adolescent psychiatry) length of stay is 6.99 compared to the
target of 6.44.

6 of 7



August 31, 2020 Operating Results

4. Organizational Health

The percentage of sick time year to date for the Met Campus is 5.70%, which is over
target by 2%, while overtime is .10% below the target at 2.00%.

Sick time at the Ouellette Campus is 6.40% compared to the target of 3.70%, while
overtime is over target at 4.50% year to date compared to the target of 2.30%.

Some of the increase in sick time costs at both campus relates paying staff to remain
home in isolation due to COVID-19. We are also assuming some of the incidental sick
time is staff dealing with childcare issues.

With respect to FTEs, the Met Campus is favourable to budget by 54.7 FTE. This is
comprised of a 44.4 FTE surplus in hospital operations and an 10.3 FTE surplus in
Cancer Centre operations. At the Ouellette Campus, the FTE variance is favourable
by 17.4 FTE.

FTEs attributable to COVID-19 additional staffing are 115.5 in total, 83.3 for hospital
operations and 32.2 for the St. Clair College Field Hospital.

7 of7



= = = E s 1 (206'7}) = 806’7l 3A0GE PapN|OUl SSOf aNUaAaJ pue 8L2) ¥8.'¢
| | sasuadxa Bunelado Aeuipioeixe
N ] papunyun paje(aJ gL-alA0D
[290'9 6 (ove) §|; - $ 860z $ 860 8| (Geg's) S opeL & (Sz0w) S,0008 - UIBJEIN 12101 | | [[5€9 $  LI6L 3|
seg'z ¢ (u8'%) ¢ M = $ (6 ¢ (216 i (osz's) ¢ (29 $ (zie's) s5,000$ - (Woyaq) sniding 32N | oz | || 899 $ 899°L $
2.6 (£25) | m - - - m 10N 967 - (g52) (9suadxa) seusnooal Jawo | oz | [[(eS) (£g)
YOL'vES $ 886'CZZ $| | - $  CI90VS S E/8'0vS S | [msE (699'6) § IS¥'éez $  0zZL'Lee asuadx3 [ejoL 6l | (zoz'e) ¢ leg'iy &
L¥6 €l ZL8'S = Fad A Z51 0Z0'9 898G uoneziyowe [exde) |8l | G 8511
GL9'Z 0€0'L | - 2002 0¥’ | [weoez-  (gzZ'L) €66 122’ [ejual / esea) juswdinby | 21 | |I(8) 902
16219 616'6Z f = 82T ¥9 8ZTY9 | [nese ele] 185'9%: 726'52 sasuadxe Jayjo g salddng | eu | (| L+E 966'F
£51°09 £Z¥'ee P 262'09 26209 | [wesr (g5L'1L) £ZL'se 8.Z'92 sbrug |51 | [(9e8) £85'G
Z88'6¢ 188'FL v LEZ'98 L€2'9¢ 1 |weseL 080'2 00g'sl 0zz'sl sayddns [ea16ing ¢ [eopaly | 1 | [|(sz2) 120'€
€8S ziz'ze T £91'25 goL'zs | [weoe LSt £95'12 ZLL'e uopesaunwal yejs [eaipaiy el | [(g8L) SLS'y
see'z G08 bo- £€6'L £E6'L I [lzso00 - g08 508 1502 "uaq anny - ‘uaq sakojdwg | zL - Lol
yer'Lo 28'9Z [ = 669'€9 G69'€Q | [wees (228'1) §90'92Z Z65'.2 sjyeuaq sakoidwz | L1 | (I(8L9) 8£E'S
gse'zbz ¢ 862'€0L | | - § pLG'SHZ $  pLG'ShZ § | [weer (oL's) & GeB'ZOL $  2Z0L'80L seueles |oL | (828'L) § or9'Ez 8
_ _ (s.000%) 2suadxgy
126'9¢G $ 8¢96L2 S| : - § 196856 $  LOG'BEG § . [%0c0 Gl9 $ 68€GZZ $  ¥90'9¢Z BNUBASY [EJOL 6| [cz6c $§ zceer S
ZeCer 90S'LL §o= 096'2¥ 096y | ||%eET (66%) 8LLLL BlTLL Seusncda auiof e || [ GLL IbSE
0gs'e: 808'2 I = 95¥'9 osv'e | |wst 14 089'z LeL'Z uonezipowe juel jeuded| £ | | (8) 0e§
$66'2¢ gze'el | = 198'L€ L98°1e | [[wesmi (802'2) BSZ'EL 050'LL saolues juaned| 9 | [ 091 £78'Z
Yid 6l P rad a4 | (o000 (L) gL = awfed-00 owoiyp| s || [ () =
0Z9't 129'L P 969'€ 969'€ b (0gz'L) 6¥S'L 692 UonEPOWWoDY paudsald| v | ((e22) 16
£01'22 ov6'L ¢ = z20'22 z20'Z2 o [[woze zsL VAN 926'6 ‘quuiey Bnig - Butpung Asiuin| € || | 28¥ LIE'T
04112 166'8 |- £00'0Z c00'0z | [jmsees 29L'L 15%'8 #29'G1 aw-auQ - Bupung Asiuy| z || || €29'¢ 0£E's
§50'L0F § 650'89L $| | - 8 GLE'LLY & GLE'LLY S| fwosk (6L2'e) & zeg'zLl § evTBL aseg - Bupung Ansiu| L | fi(z2e)  $ ve9'vE 8
I |
i i (s.000%) @nuanay
pujieal aleqoyJeap| ¢ (asunimed 1ebpng 15823104 ! % (nejun)iaed 1°bpng [enjoy 18tpng [enjoy
_ m uonduasag (repun)ned
|enjay Jeaj Jold | pu3z Jeaj | ajeq 0L Jeai Yjuo Juaing

020z ‘L€ 3snbBny Bulpug syjuciy aAld4 ay3 Joj s)nsay Bunesadp pajepijosuod
AVLIISOH TYNOIDTH ¥OSANIM

L# Juawale}s



0Z0Z/c2/6 €0l 020Z 1snbny QLA - S4 @nmesedwod LZ0Z ~ 0202
1.|.|.|.|_.|.|.|-.I_ -.-|-.l..l.|._|.|.|.|..|.|.|.|.l- _|.|.|.|.I-.|.|.|-|_.|.|.|.|._ ..|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|.|._I I_ .I.|-|-|.|._|.|.|.|.._
. . e L . ) o . Buipuny. . '
1OLLH m_ z oy s 1 $1 m_ _88 g s I w_ oog'e m_ _ awnjon Ansiuip pauseaun - aial 5 _ _am& §  jo% 81
_:.”...ii_i.ii..._ _.i.i.|.|_|..|i.|._|i..|i..m _M.l.ul.l.J.l..l.l.|_ii.|.|._ qlwﬂoymwwu.g_l%_lmmm_ “SHOSAST ST - _huiviii_.liii._
S SRS S S S S ST Sii_ . cuoupspununpamisiainool 100 S i i
i | 1 I I 11 1 1 11 SAOGE papnjaul - l I
mmmm; . $11 s | - $} o 8 mrom.E $ 1 - wm £09'1L i sasuadxa Gunesado ba_.__Eom._uxam 2z m:\mo_u $ mvmo.w i
e e e i o e e i ot e e i e i e e e e e e e e . i o ! POIEIBAGLANGDy | o e e e et

ece'z ¢ (8w s|! - $ (Z16')) $ (216l ! f(osz's) ¢ (29) $ (z1E'9) ¢ 5,000% - (ioyea) sniding3oN| oz || 898 ¢ 899t ¢

| 1
(eo'y) s (€29 |1 - (02'v) s (9L')) ¢ _ L9 (ovs) 8 (e29) 8 uonezipowy Bulping 1aN | sz | || LL Gew) s
I |

'y (#0Z'%) |- (9g1) (9g1) I (zrets) 8.9 (6€9't) =mowans | vz | [ 159 66L°L

2lG (£29) g ® < 5 1 |[(e52) - (952) (sesuadx3 ) / salar0day Jayi0 | €z || [(es) [G3)

(€L) {91) L= (8v) (8v) I vz (0g) (9) (1ou) sepon soUl0 | 22 | || 9 L

| I (s,000$) suonesadp 1oy wouy (¥ouaq) / sniding
. : b " ’ , suonesado .

gie'c ¢ (199'e) § _ $ (g9 $ (s8) $ _ (sgo's) ¢ 8oL $ (8% ¢ eydsoH woz4 (roueq) / sniding | |, 869 $ [X-1- 3 A

668'826 $ evo'lee $|. - § /697G §  /S8'pES . [[(€LL6) $  8/6222 § 162822 8 asuadxg [ejoL oz | (gLz’e) § €51y $

9zZv'e 16G'¢ e 96.°8 96.'8 'l es gog'e L1S'E uonezipowe juawdinby | st (4 0.

§19'2 00’} ks 68€'z esc'’z | [l(gez'L) £66 12e'e [eyual / eses) juawdinbg | 81 | |(8) 902

G69'L vl - ez’ ¥£2'2 | || 8% 299 ¥19 1sau9)u| wiey Buo | 4t ¥l gLl

yLY'6S grl'se i E or8'Le ore'Le | | e6s 888'6Z 062'sZ sasuadxa Jayjo @ sayddng | s | || €22 v.8'y

£61'09 fora g ord P 252'09 Z52'09 _ (s61'1) €zL'sz 8.2'sg sbrug | st | [[(998) £8G'G

188'se 288'7L - 9ez'9¢e gez'oe . || 0802 00£'G1 0zZ'cl sai|ddns [ea1bing @ [ealpaN | vi | [I(522) L20'S

£8L'vS zie'ee [ €91°25 gor'zs || 1oy £95'12 ZL'iz uonessunwal yeys [eoipaly | b || [(egL) GLS'y

geez 08 b= £€6°1 ee6' ||| - 508 08 $1S00 “uaq aunjny - “uaq asfojdwz | zt LoL

£8¢€'19 825'92 [ £99'€9 £09'€9 | [(628'}) 2s0'92 186'/Z sjyeuaq safojdw3 | 11 || [(229) Gee's

ozL'zvz $ O0SZEOL $ || - $ vre'skT $  vrE'SrE § | |(92L's) $  L26'TOL $  €50'80L $ saueles | ot | [(sze't) § 0£9'zz ¢

_ _ (s.000%) asuadx3

¢LLZeS § zeellz 8| - § 69/7ES $ B9LPEG S| | 889 $ 989¢2z $ P.EvEC $ SNuUaASY [Bl0L 6 |o1ee & v00'6y  $

0SL SV v6T L) L ¥16Cr viecy | ((€0S) SLLZL oLzZt ssuanod21 20| ¢ || | 601 0vSE

299'z 9zz'l Pos 0852 085'2 | 8€ GL0'L SLL'L uonezipowe juelb uswdinbg| £ | ((6) 902

¥65'2E gze'sl N 198°L€ le8'le | [[(602'2) 652'cl 0S0'LL SSOIAISS JuBled| 091 £v8'Z

Iy 6L Lo- FAg A4 I (gL 8L wswAed-00 owoiys| s | (i) -

0z9'c 1zo'l Lo~ 969'c 969'E | (o82's) 6vS'L 692 uollepowwoooy pausjaid| ¥ | |(€z2) 16

£0L'22 ov6'L [ - ze0'zz zzo'zz | || zss 9/L's 8Z6'6 "quiiey Bruq - Buipund Ansiuipy| € z8y L1€'2

0LL'12 186'8 P £00'02 £00'02 | || L0L'L LS¥'8 ¥29'Gl awn-auQ - Buipung Agsiuin| z | || €29'S 0EE's

9z8'00r S €66'29L $ Eo $ SYoLLY §  SP9LLY _ (6gz's) & BEVEZLL S 08L'69L S aseg - Bupung Ansiuiy| L | (Z22)  $ L1978
L | (s.0004) @nuanay
pugJies) aslegojJeaA| ' (reunimed ummv:m 1SB23104 ! (Ajun)/ned «wm_u:m 1enjoy 1e6png |enjdy
m _, paacsddeun
| i uonduasac 0} (Aejun)/red
|enjoy Jea) Joud H pus3 Jeaj H ajeq 0] JedA YJUO[ JuauIng

mum:a:._mu aPsjIen pue 9| - pajepljosuo)
0Z0Z ‘1€ IsnBny Buipug SYjuo a2A14 243 104 s)nsay bBunesadp
IVLIdASOH TVNOID3IY HOSANIM
Z# Wwawae)s




0202/8L/8 A 020z I1snbny QLA - S4 saesedwo) LZ0Z ~ 0202

£689'L vOLL'L T 1'069°L | [Z%S EZLLL 97591 TAUQ SAO [ENdSOH) buess 314 ¢ VIN 91991
%0ET %012 |%00°0 %0ET %0ET ' [%01°0 %0€C %02 diod [e}0] 03 BWINBAD % 2 YIN %00°C
%0.L°G %0€'G 1%00°0 %0.°€ %0L°E | (%0072 %0L°E %0.L°G dwio) [eJoL O} SWIf YOIS % + YN %0¢ G
| | =
! : ATINO SNJWVI LIW 3[ea jeuoeziuebiQ
viv 0E'S T ) ¥7'9 N [CER)] 7’9 66'0 SO 1Us0SB|0pY - BDBIBAY YoASd 2 (L¥'0) 1679
7 EEY e ¥S'y ¥6'¥ 210 [ehd LEY SO sbelany sndy L (LL°0) Go'¥
i ! ATINO SNdWVI LIW uoieibayuf wajsAs P Sainseaj SSaIY Juaed
#09'8 LBS'E W= 969'8 969'8 L | Eve Ger'e 299'¢ ucjesadQ jo sinoH 1D zL 5 PPL
8929 8192 E ¥9E'0 ¥9€'9 N [ 0LLe 6EST uonesadQ 40 sinoH [JIN 11 | ||(g) 9es
- - I - - - | - - - Ssuasul JajeWaoed (9) - -
06€ SOl [ - oLy 0Ly | [tevL) LIl Ve sainpsooid sauy (9) (12) 7l
06 S e 19 19 1 @© B3 0¢ sainpaooud diH (B) L gl
: : IS3WNJO/ anuaAay ajqelie 0L
geL'ol 06% ¥ T G690 Gee'0L  t |[(L8L'?) cov'y 289’} SYSIA S80IAIS AjunwWwo) & 651 G90'L
8.LECl LE0'ZS i 6V el 6¥G'vel i ||(689°C) 80S'ZS 0z8'9F sysiaolug & | (¥8S) 596'6
¥50'6 ¥66'C I 7Y 6 ¥8%'6 ! ||(8zs’2) g2y L6¥'L sased Ausbing Aeg - HO £ (ov€) LS¥
968°C 659’} = 606°E 606°E I [(09) 829'L ¥Z0'L sesed juaedul-dO 9 | (08) Lsz
ZE0'eS 01622 = LGS PG 166vs | |(ove'w) 20822 29611 Sploy W3 pue sysiA Aousbiswg § (£59) £90'y
86L') LS s 692 69¢ | | [©€) LG Z8v sAep ‘jed Juadse|0pY - OMelYoAsd ¥ G Zsl
Ge6'ee €2v e - 92978 9z9%e | ||(@86'h) €er Ve Lyv'62 {UoAsd "[oxa) skep “jed ajndy € (vey) $£4'9
8161 €562 i 080'v2 080%¢ | |[(250E) 066 8EL'9 (yoksd |oxa) suojesedss sjndy z | |l(€65) Lyy'L
¥8E 7T 8010l g €9.'ve £9l'vz |[(26L7) 08E°0L 885/ 9IH - (159) sase) paybiapn [BI0L L (ge€) BGL'L
: : ATINO SNdYD L3N Sa.nseajy aWnjoy jusned|
0.6'6L $ 9ZZ¢ $ _ & ¢ 2906 $ ze0'6Z $ _ 866, $ e0LEL $§ LY § sjosloid [eyded spund ump / pepung °¢ Y g0g'l  §
vire S loce S |! - § 8.6 § 8.6 ¢! |zzd s e $ 0T 3 ’ $,000$ 4/0 495 B/U A 3
_. M Ad - sainjipuadxa juawdinba [eyden
6e8'Ll § w1 s§| - § 6.2 S 6lz. $!|s8l’L § g0t §  eesl § $,000$ LZ - 0Z0Z |eosld es B/u €ez $
, I - sainjipuadxa juswdinba |eyden
€E0 9g°0 [ WN 0%'0 or'0 I {100 0%'0 1v0 operjusuny v B g/u
LI 5 = | VN /N = $ | |[WN /N - $ 5,000% - USED pajaisaiun € L B
%911 %65 L | %00 %BE0 %6E 0 | [%BET- %090 %6.L1- % - UlBIej\ [eloL ¢ %90°L %L6°E
/819§ (lov'e) & - § 860 $ 860 3 |lGegs) & ove'lL & (520w $ S,0008 - ulbiejy [ejol | GEY L6, §
i ! S9.nsesj| SoUBLWIOL3 [BrouBUl{
puj.ies)\ @legojiesA _ (rejun)ined 1ebpng Isedalod ! || (reunyned Emn:m |enjoy (reun)ined [enjoy
' | uonduasag
|enjay 1ea A Jold _ pugdeap _ ajeq ol Jes) Yuop Juaing

sasndwen aya||anQ pue }a|\ - palepljosuosn
020z ‘L€ 3snBny Buipu3 syjuoly aAl4 ayj 10} synsay Bunelado
IVLIdSOH TTYNOIDIY HOSANIM



0Z0Z/8L/6 glog 0202 1snbny OLA - S4 aajesedwo) LZ0Z ~ 0202
= B = - = (6'6¢) - B'6E Puels 314 s /N *
® - - . - (85°62) = 8562 S0O7 ebelany Sndy ¥ = =
2 = - - - 895°L = 895'L sAep jusied ainoy ¢ & -
N - - - - €5 - €G suoneledss andy 2z - B
- = = = * L1Z = L1z 9IH - (159) saseD papybiapn [ejol | - -
pug.ieaj sle( 0} JBSA (ARun)ARS 1ebpng 1SE03104 (neun)nes 1ebpng |enjoy (nejun)ined |[ENRDY
uonduiosag
|enjoy ieaj Jold pus 1eap ajeq ol Jeai YJuo\ Juauing
ATNO SNdINYD 3937702 ¥IVID S S9UNSE3|H| SUIN|OA JUalEd
glert  eort |1 - T T Ther vver't vl Lezy'l ES0r'L TAIUQ SAO [eNdsoH) Bulels 51 ¢ VIN ToLrL
%05 ¥ %LLY %000 %0E'C %0 ¢ ' |w0eE- %0E2 %057 dwo) [ej01 O} BWIHAAD % ¢ /N %0.L'S
%009 %119 - :%00°0 %0L'E %0L'E (%047 %0LE %0¥'9 dwod [ejoL O} BWIL %OIS % L V/N %09°G
. ATINO SNdWVI 3LLITIEN0O yieaH jeuoneziuebiQ
08'ZL vo'zl - ev'zl eVl : [teL"0) & 85CL SO'1 INpY - 9beleny YoAsd € | (28 0) gzZ'el
- - m - - - : - - - SO ebeleay qeysy ¢ » -
GZL 8L = egL €e. N [CE) €eL L6°L SO ebelany SInoy L (06°0) £z'8
! ATINO SNdWVI FLIFTIINO uopeiboju| WaISAS § SaInSesl] SSeddY JUINE]
8.1'8 z.9'¢ N 9.8 9118 1 (|(e02) 9/8'¢ 299°C UOII8dQ 4O SINOH 1D ¥ ! il
BEL'Q 1092 - 10£°9 10€'9 G 79T G892 uoneradQ Jo sinoH [EIN g1 | || 7€ 895
LLL g8 s Gl ¥Sl MR 59 L6l [essielg (q ¥zl LE1L
6V ¥ 86| iD= £50'S €80'G ! l(co0'2) ZEL'T 62l [essieliun (e (6¥€) 61
I | sjpoeliele) z,
g9z 1zl ] - g9z g9z | ||(61) LLL 26 spessul Ia)eWwaded (9) () 1z
¥8¥ £0Z - LIy L1 I [CED) 86l 05 sanpaoold aauy (q) (02) 0z
Leg 7l - cee gee (G vl X5 sainpaocid diH (e) (@) 9
m w ISLUN[O/ anuaAay a[qeLIBA |l
0ZE0L L9EY |- ¥LL'6 v.iL'6 | [+106e L60'Y 801'€e siisin saolaleg Ajunwiwod ol | | ¥€2'6 2900}
81L°1S £Y9've - 6E0°09 6e0'08 | |[(esroL) g98've 66E8 SHSIADIUID 6 (¥se'e) Le8'}
ZEB EL 862 9 = €56 ¥l €s6 vl | [[(Z06'Y) 9¥e'9 BEV'| saseo Aisbing Reg - 4o ¢ | [(289) 695
z20'y LTl e 686'C 686'E N [PE) gzl LLLL ssseo jusnedul-Ho £ (s6) £
ZCLYS £Ll'zz : = 9eLvs gzlvs ) (2¥6'Y) ZhL'zz 0LL°LL sploy y3 pue sysia fousbiaws s | ((goy) oLLY
= - v - = ! - - - sAep juaned qeysy s - =
zesTe 00£'6 P = 11922 1182¢ 1 | L¥ 00E'6 1216 shep Jusied )|NpY - oMjeIYOASd ¥ 0SL 0802
8vS'l8 BELVE == €62 68 ggzgg |1 |[{cog’s) 167 ¥E 68162 (UoAsd “joxa) shep Jed ejndy € (oy5) 5/9'9
e Ll 779y = €706l evo6lL | [[(c0%) ¥9.°/ S (yoAsd |oxa) suoljeledas ajnay z (z08) 118
12852 6660L - Z0v'Se z0¥'sz | |(6e0’e) 8¥9'0L 60972 OIH - (1s8) sese] paiybiap BI0L | (8¥g) #08'L
pug.iesj 8jeQ 0} JEBA _ {reun)aed 1ebpng 15E08104 _ (neun)/ned 1ebpng [enoy (aejun)ned |enoy
_ _ uonduasaqg
|eNjoy JeaA Joid | puz Jeaj | 2]eQ Ol JBaA yuop JuaLny
| ATNO SNdINYD 3LLITIIN0 S2INSEd| SWN[OA Ju3LjEd

sesndwen a33a|[enQ pue J3[Al - pajepIjosuon

020z ‘1€ ¥snBny Buipu3 syjuoly aAld ay} 1o} syinsay Bunesado

TVLIdSOH TYNOIDIY HOSANIM




0Z0Z/LLIB

Jepenb yoea Jo pus je pamalnal Juawisnipe anjen jaxiew - Z ajoN
‘yuow Jad Lye'ees Jo suawied jsausiul pue (ediound paxy UM %SGE0'S 40 Sjel
1SaUsUl UB UM JuaWaaiBe dyMS Sied 1saiaiul Jeak 6z UBnoius 1as el Jsausiul - | 910N

ooo'seL’t § - s - Juawsnipy anjeA 184l
0} pasjIEl - UBCT JUSWZisu]
PORILIWOD - § HPRID 121 - DEID

S2IN$0|2sIq J2Ul0

Z 910N

2202 ‘i fuenigay

- [emaual ajel xau Jo ajed
000'08¢'1$ Jo0 uoipod jJuawuno jo 18U
- 9,9°'G 0} %69°Z JO Selel jsassjul
UM SUBO| Wia )l Jnod - dL °§

000'464'v2 & 000'/BL'PC $ =

1sloid SIH - ueoT Jusw|esy|
puewad -3 WpaiD- 241D ¥

000'650'92 000'000'LF ¢ 000'L¥E'02

000°LEE' S

Jo uoipod JuaLND JO 18U - %SZ'E

0} %9%'Z JO S8j.l Jsalajul upm
ueor] Buiajoasy juawdinbg [eyde)
PIJILIWOY - D UPa3ID - 2dID '€
000's%9$ Jo uood

1UBLIND JO JaU - U207 JusLu|eisu|
PaRIWWOD - g ¥paiD - 041D 2

ooo'oze's ¢ 000°008'9 ooo'svl'c &

L 310N 000'904'2 $ 000'90L°2 $& -

(%02°2) %Sz
- a4 DGID = 8j) Jsalaiuy) yuow sy Buunp vonezin sbesany

sAe@ Lg 000'S00'SL &

000'}64'2 $ 000'000°GL $ 000'60T'2L $ IpaIo Jo 3uIm - Y IPaID °L

pasn unowy  pieog ayl s|qejieny adA} Aypoed yueg
Ag pazuoyiny junowny
junowy

0z0z 1snBny QLA - S4 sAneledwe)

000'sll's  $

000'gLL'9 ———

01 553 YEAY XEW {(%S6°0)

sdq /1 §s9] awud jo junoosoy
wnwiuilw e e jsaseiu buiues Juaunsaaul g0
%z0’L -sdg
QL 559 YEAY xew (586°0)
sdq 21 ssef awud jo unooay
wnwiliw e e 1sasei Sues  JUBWISSAU] DEID
= g
) dsayold
) JSaUBjul panIooy
i %LT L
- Z# JUNO2OY JUBWIsaAL] - sdg
0L 588] YEAY Xew '(%0.°0)
sdq 621 ssa] awwd jo plilglelelol g
wnwuiw e e jsesau) Buwea  JUSWISSAU] DFID
- $
(e602'0) sdg 621
sso| awud je 1sasalyl Sujwee JUNCODY [BISUSD
unowy juaunsaau] Jo adAy

IEJoL

(q) anasal|eyded

aoueeq

unoooe juelb

- O/E JUBL}SAAU]

(e) [eyde) 'z

Jusunsany Ainbg

JUNoodYy
JususSaAu| wis}
(e) poys g use 'L

sbuimoliog jueg

| SjUsWSaAY|

1202 ~ 0202

0Z0Z ‘1€ Isnbny

sBuimoliog yueg pue spuawiseau] jo Aewwng
|eydsoy |eucibay Jospuipy

S# Juswalels



508°seT 6¥5'sST
(z66'2L) (sog'sL)
(g62'L) (g62'L)
vie'0Le ZLi'pie
£99'L2) 0€6'8L1L
$€6'9 200'2
G6L'L GBL'L
ore'L 690°L
¥29'22 627'ST
8L2'es Z88°19
210'001 lgs'Lzl
= 000'G€
vEL'L vzl
Zrl Zrl
695'E gse'e
Bi1'ES ¥86'6%
GeZ'y zse's
99262 889'GL
£Z9'L1L LBL'L
0202 ‘L€ e 020z ‘L£ Isnbny

Sjosse Jou pue san(ige!| (2oL

:sjasse JaN
:159850] JUSWIAINSEAWDY

sjuelf |eydes - snuanal palaeq
a|geied sjyauaq X218

1oyiew o} paxsel

suoleBiqo ases)| [ende)
suonehijgo wauaq peniody

ueo| yueg

:sanpijiqel| wue) buoT

Senl|Ige)| JuaLnd (2101

20UBApPE - Y)BaH Jo AnSIUlN
ases| |eydeo jo uoipod Juaung
suonebigo

suaq paniode uoipod usung
19ep W) Buoj jo uood Juaung
saliigel| paniody

Ausiulp - ajgefed sjunooay
opeJ; - a|gefed sjunoooy
SSaupajgapul yueg

yelpiano ueg

:Sam|Iqel| JualIng

S3LLIND3 ANV S3ALLITIGVIT

508°ceZ 6¥5'sSZ
S677'202 051'502
LSP'961 Z£0'661
108'LE 8L8'LY
#19'851 wLLLG)
¥70'Q 8LL'e
oLe'es 66€'0S
z8ge'
oLL'Z
652'S £65'S
BEL'S 96 L1
Zrl'e ovZ'9
90¢'8 08.'6
8re'e 809t
0202 ‘L€ YaIel 0202 ‘L€ }snbny

(s,000 ul sjunowy)
0Z0zZ ‘L ISnbny 1y sy

NOILLISOd TVIONVNI4 40 LNJWILVLS

TV1IdSOH TVNOIDIY YOSANIM

€ #juswiajels

sjasse [B]o]

sj@sse Wia) Buo| [Bjo

ssalboud ul uoonsUoD
1oN ‘Juswdinbg el ‘Ausdoid

SJUBW}SaAU|

:s}osse wua) buo

S}OSSE JUalIng [Bl0]

saiped pajeja) wodj ang

sableyo pauajep % piedsid
SaUoJUSAU|

Jayo -

dIHO -
0292 / Aisiuip - 93y Sjunoaoy
SJUBLUISAAUI LLIB}-UoYS B UseD

:5)asSe JUaLINg

S13sSsY



868'0L $ - $ 8689l pouad jo pua ‘Yse
S = = pouad jo Bujuuibaq ‘yseod
268901 $ - 86891 pouad ayj Buninp yses ul (asealoap) asealoul }aN
(¥69't) 0¥S'0L (zzL'e) saljiAioe buroueuly (ul pasn) Aq papiaoid ysed
L8l 9LL 8.8 senl|iqel| wua} Buoj Jaujo pue s|qeAed ssjoN
(cor's) L8l (rov's) paAI@0al suoieuop pue sjuelb [eyded
865 zov'e 8¢6 a|qefed sueo
(91) (B.¥%) (12) sasodind |eydes 1o} pjay slusLisanu|
SAILIAILDY ONIONVNIH
¥5E'GL (z18'og) B6¥¥'] sjosse |eydeo Jo aseyaing
S3ILIAILOV ONILSIANI
8€T'9 zlz'ozg LLL'zL saljiAljoe bBunjelado Aq papiaodd ysen
(Lzs'L) 9€0'9L G88'g seoueleq bupelado (Ul pasn) / Woll Mol Ysed
6GL'L 9€Z'0L 98¢2'¢
€e6'y (0g5'9) LELT suonnqguiuod [e}ided palajep JO UoHEZINOWY
= = = [esodsip uo (Uuieg)) / $so07
BSL'L LY6'EL 898G sjesse |ejdeo jo uonezpowy
SWia}l yseos-uou (Jonpsp) ppy
199°L $ 682 $ (eLe'e) poliad ay} 4o} (J1oyap)/sniding 18N
S3ILIAILOY ONILVY3HO
020z 0202 ‘L€ yaIely 0202 ‘L€ 3snbny

Bny jo yuop

(5,000 ui spunowy)

6102 ‘1€ yasepy Buipuz s syj Jo4 spunowy aAnesedwos YA
0Z0Z ‘1€ 3snBny Bulpug yYuol sy 4o

SMO|4 Ysed jJo Juawsajels
jeyidso} jeuoibay JOSPUIpp

¥ # Juswalelg



TAB G



WINDSOR )
REGIONAL Media Report to the
HOSPITAL Board of Directors

OUTSTANDING CARE
NO EXCEPTIONS!

Date: October 2020

The following is a summary of WRH in the news from October 2020.

Community cluster in Windsor-Essex linked to 31 COVID-19 cases: WECHU

CTV Windsor, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/community-cluster-in-windsor-essex-linked-to-31-covid-19-cases-wechu-
1.5089281

WECHU identifies link among 31 COVID-19 cases
Blackburn News, Sept. 2, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/02/wechu-identifies-link-among-31-covid-19-

cases/

Family parties, card games and sleepover linked to 31 COVID-19 cases
Windsor Star, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/family-parties-card-games-sleepover-linked-to-31-covid-19-cases

Ontario nurses create haunting video of life behind the scenes

AMB800, Sept. 2, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-ontario-nurses-create-haunting-video-of-life-behind-the-
scenes-1.13394698

Windsor-Essex public health can now track COVID-19 through wastewater

CBC Windsor, Sept. 2, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/great-lakes-institute-windsor-coronavirus-wastewater-poop-
1.5710240

Zero transmissions at WRH proves PPE works
Windsor Star, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/zero-transmissions-at-windsor-regional-hospital-proves-ppe-works

WRH announces additional COVID-19 testing site

AMB8O00, Sept. 2, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-
site-1.13379110

Page 1 of 13


https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/community-cluster-in-windsor-essex-linked-to-31-covid-19-cases-wechu-1.5089281
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/community-cluster-in-windsor-essex-linked-to-31-covid-19-cases-wechu-1.5089281
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/02/wechu-identifies-link-among-31-covid-19-cases/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/02/wechu-identifies-link-among-31-covid-19-cases/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/family-parties-card-games-sleepover-linked-to-31-covid-19-cases
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-ontario-nurses-create-haunting-video-of-life-behind-the-scenes-1.13394698
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-ontario-nurses-create-haunting-video-of-life-behind-the-scenes-1.13394698
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/great-lakes-institute-windsor-coronavirus-wastewater-poop-1.5710240
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/great-lakes-institute-windsor-coronavirus-wastewater-poop-1.5710240
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/zero-transmissions-at-windsor-regional-hospital-proves-ppe-works
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-site-1.13379110
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-site-1.13379110

COVID-19 testing at the Sportsplex Thursday-Friday
Blackburn News, Sept. 2, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/02/covid-19-testing-sportsplex-thursday-friday/

St. Clair College COVID-19 testing centre to open Thursday
CTV Windsor, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/st-clair-college-sportsplex-covid-19-testing-centre-to-open-thursday-1.5090430

Local nurses union produces PTSD short film
Windsor Star, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nurses-union-produces-ptsd-short-film

CTV Windsor, Sept. 2, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/13-windsor-regional-hospital-staff-infected-with-covid-19-since-pandemic-onset-
1.5092340

13 WRH staff caught COVID-19 not from patients, but from the community
CBC Windsor, Sept. 2, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-windsor-regional-hospital-testing-staff-1.5711589

Another COVID-19 death in Windsor-Essex
Blackburn News, Sept. 2, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/03/another-covid-19-death-windsor-essex/

Another person dies, four new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex

CTV Windsor, Sept. 3, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/another-person-dies-four-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-
1.5090851

WRH announces additional COVID-19 testing site

AMSO00, Sept. 3, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-
site-1.13379110

WRH staff infected with COVID-19 since pandemic onset

City seeking funding assurances to take over seasonal agriculture worker COVID isolation and recovery
centre

CTV Windsor, Sept. 8, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-seeking-funding-assurances-to-take-over-seasonal-agriculture-worker-covid-
isolation-and-recovery-centre-1.5096703

Health unit announces three new cases of COVID-19
AMB800, Sept. 11, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-announces-three-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13470963

Taking over isolation recovery centre for migrant workers unchartered waters

Windsor Star, Sept. 10, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/taking-over-isolation-recovery-centre-for-migrant-workers-
uncharted-waters/wcm/bba4078d-07ba-4f81-9863-f92c¢78663517/

Page 2 of 13


https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/02/covid-19-testing-sportsplex-thursday-friday/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/st-clair-college-sportsplex-covid-19-testing-centre-to-open-thursday-1.5090430
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/nurses-union-produces-ptsd-short-film
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/13-windsor-regional-hospital-staff-infected-with-covid-19-since-pandemic-onset-1.5092340
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/13-windsor-regional-hospital-staff-infected-with-covid-19-since-pandemic-onset-1.5092340
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-windsor-regional-hospital-testing-staff-1.5711589
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/03/another-covid-19-death-windsor-essex/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/another-person-dies-four-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5090851
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/another-person-dies-four-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5090851
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-site-1.13379110
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-announces-additional-covid-19-testing-site-1.13379110
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-seeking-funding-assurances-to-take-over-seasonal-agriculture-worker-covid-isolation-and-recovery-centre-1.5096703
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/city-seeking-funding-assurances-to-take-over-seasonal-agriculture-worker-covid-isolation-and-recovery-centre-1.5096703
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-announces-three-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13470963
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/taking-over-isolation-recovery-centre-for-migrant-workers-uncharted-waters/wcm/bba4078d-07ba-4f81-9863-f92c78663517/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/taking-over-isolation-recovery-centre-for-migrant-workers-uncharted-waters/wcm/bba4078d-07ba-4f81-9863-f92c78663517/

Health unit to update face mask order soon

Blackburn News, Sept. 10, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/10/health-unit-update-face-mask-order-soon/
Local health unit plans to update face covering order

AMSO00, Sept. 10, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-plans-to-update-face-covering-order-1.13465981

Health unit reports another COVID-19 death eight new cases

Windsor Star, Sept. 10, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-another-covid-19-death-eight-new-
cases/wcm/03b334ec-2591-4b2c-b54a-74bdce886583/

Border city mayors split over when US-Canada border should open
CTV Windsor, Sept. 10, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/border-city-mayors-split-over-when-us-canada-border-should-open-1.5099391

University of Windsor sees first COVID-19 case in student, health unit confirms

Jarvis: You can’t give up when the life of your community is at stake

Windsor Star, Sept. 11, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-you-cant-give-up-when-the-life-of-your-community-is-at-
stake

The Afternoon News: Stay home if you're sick

AMBSO00, Sept. 11, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-stay-home-if-you-re-sick-
1.13476419?mode=Article

Windsor artist eager to start new mural to honour first respondents

Blackburn News, Sept. 12, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/12/windsor-artist-eager-start-new-mural-
honour-first-responders/

Four new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 14, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/four-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5103681

Close contact blamed for four new cases of COVID-19
AMSO00, Sept. 14, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/close-contact-blamed-for-four-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13492887

The Afternoon Drive - Audio: Increasing COVID cases causes hospital concern
AMB800, Sept. 14, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-covid-cases-rising-1.13495372?mode=Article

Review prevention protocols before opening workplaces
Blackburn News, Sept. 14, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/14/review-prevention-protocols-opening-

workplaces/

Page 3 of 13


https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/10/health-unit-update-face-mask-order-soon/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-plans-to-update-face-covering-order-1.13465981
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-another-covid-19-death-eight-new-cases/wcm/03b334ec-2591-4b2c-b54a-74bdce886583/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-another-covid-19-death-eight-new-cases/wcm/03b334ec-2591-4b2c-b54a-74bdce886583/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/border-city-mayors-split-over-when-us-canada-border-should-open-1.5099391
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-you-cant-give-up-when-the-life-of-your-community-is-at-stake
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-you-cant-give-up-when-the-life-of-your-community-is-at-stake
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-stay-home-if-you-re-sick-1.13476419?mode=Article
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-stay-home-if-you-re-sick-1.13476419?mode=Article
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/12/windsor-artist-eager-start-new-mural-honour-first-responders/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/12/windsor-artist-eager-start-new-mural-honour-first-responders/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/four-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5103681
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/close-contact-blamed-for-four-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13492887
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-covid-cases-rising-1.13495372?mode=Article
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/14/review-prevention-protocols-opening-workplaces/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/14/review-prevention-protocols-opening-workplaces/

Invest in COVID-19 prevention before second wave hits, health unit says

Windsor Star, Sept. 14, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/invest-in-covid-19-prevention-before-second-wave-hits-health-unit-says

Update: Close contact blamed for four new cases of COVID-19

AMSO00, Sept .14, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-close-contact-blamed-for-four-new-cases-of-covid-19-
1.13492887

Local health unit confirms second COVID-19 community cluster

AMSO00, Sept. 15, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-confirms-second-covid-19-community-cluster-
1.13500478

One hour turnaround: WRH to start testing for COVID locally
Windsor Star, Sept. 15, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/one-hour-turnaround-windsor-regional-hospital-to-start-testing-

for-covid-locally

Social gatherings remind Medical Officer of Health of second wave of 1918 flu pandemic

Blackburn News, Sept. 15, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/15/social-gatherings-remind-moh-second-wave-
1918-flu-pandemic/

City takes control of migrant worker isolation recovery centre
Windsor Star, Sept. 15, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/city-takes-control-of-migrant-worker-isolation-recovery-centre

Health unit warns of second COVID-19 wave
Windsor Star, Sept. 15, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-warns-of-second-covid-19-wave

1st COVID-19 case confirmed at Catholic elementary school in Windsor-Essex
CBC Windsor, Sept. 15, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/first-catholic-school-covid-case-windsor-essex-1.5725375

Confirmed case of COVID-19 at Amherstburg elementary school
CTV Windsor, Sept. 15, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/confirmed-case-of-covid-19-at-amherstburg-elementary-school-1.5106104

University of Windsor student tests positive for COVID-19

AMB800, Sept. 15, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/university-of-windsor-student-tests-positive-for-covid-19-
1.13505218

WECDSB launches online tracking of COVID-19 cases in schools
CTV Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wecdsb-launches-online-tracking-of-covid-19-cases-in-schools-1.5106849

Page 4 of 13


https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/invest-in-covid-19-prevention-before-second-wave-hits-health-unit-says
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-close-contact-blamed-for-four-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13492887
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-close-contact-blamed-for-four-new-cases-of-covid-19-1.13492887
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-confirms-second-covid-19-community-cluster-1.13500478
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-health-unit-confirms-second-covid-19-community-cluster-1.13500478
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/one-hour-turnaround-windsor-regional-hospital-to-start-testing-for-covid-locally
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/one-hour-turnaround-windsor-regional-hospital-to-start-testing-for-covid-locally
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/15/social-gatherings-remind-moh-second-wave-1918-flu-pandemic/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/15/social-gatherings-remind-moh-second-wave-1918-flu-pandemic/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/city-takes-control-of-migrant-worker-isolation-recovery-centre
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-warns-of-second-covid-19-wave
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/first-catholic-school-covid-case-windsor-essex-1.5725375
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/confirmed-case-of-covid-19-at-amherstburg-elementary-school-1.5106104
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/university-of-windsor-student-tests-positive-for-covid-19-1.13505218
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/university-of-windsor-student-tests-positive-for-covid-19-1.13505218
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wecdsb-launches-online-tracking-of-covid-19-cases-in-schools-1.5106849

Second Windsor Regional Hospital COVID-19 testing site reduces wait times
CBC Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-testing-hospitals-windsor-regional-hospital-1.5725711

New machine bringing one-hour COVID testing to WRH

AMSO00, Sept. 16, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-machine-bringing-one-hour-covid-testing-to-windsor-regional-
hospital-1.13511073

WRH looks to reduce COVID-19 test turnaround time to one hour with new machine

CTV Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://windsor.ctvhews.ca/wrh-looks-to-reduce-covid-19-test-turnaround-time-to-one-hour-with-new-
machine-1.5107118

Video: https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipld=2036583

Results in less than one hour: Windsor hospital purchasing new COVID-19 testing machine
CBC Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-covid-19-testing-machine-1.5726833

Two Windsor restaurants and Leamington credit union added to COVID-19 exposure list

CTV Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://windsor.ctvhews.ca/two-windsor-restaurants-and-leamington-credit-union-added-to-covid-19-
exposure-list-1.5107260

Ambherstburg elementary school sees region’s first student case of COVID-19

Windsor Star, Sept. 16, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/amherstburg-elementary-school-sees-regions-first-student-case-of-
covid-19/wcm/56aeb5b1-267¢c-436¢-b633-a9b006d5¢c22¢/

School COVID-19 protocols working so far
Blackburn News, Sept. 16, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/16/school-covid-19-protocols-working-far/

How Windsor-Essex handled its 1% case of COVID-19 at an elementary school

CBC Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/first-covid-case-elementary-student-windsor-essex-reaction-
1.5727206

Naloxone kits drop in distribution in Windsor-Essex
CBC Windsor, Sept. 16, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/naloxone-kits-drop-in-distribution-windsor-essex-1.5725857

AMB800, Sept. 17, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/morning-drive-windsor-regional-hospital-update-
1.13513691?mode=Article

WRH officials encourage COVID-19 testing
AMB800, Sept. 17, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-officials-encourage-covid-19-testing-1.13515988

Page 5 of 13


https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-testing-hospitals-windsor-regional-hospital-1.5725711
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-machine-bringing-one-hour-covid-testing-to-windsor-regional-hospital-1.13511073
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/new-machine-bringing-one-hour-covid-testing-to-windsor-regional-hospital-1.13511073
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-looks-to-reduce-covid-19-test-turnaround-time-to-one-hour-with-new-machine-1.5107118
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-looks-to-reduce-covid-19-test-turnaround-time-to-one-hour-with-new-machine-1.5107118
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2036583
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-covid-19-testing-machine-1.5726833
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/two-windsor-restaurants-and-leamington-credit-union-added-to-covid-19-exposure-list-1.5107260
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/two-windsor-restaurants-and-leamington-credit-union-added-to-covid-19-exposure-list-1.5107260
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/amherstburg-elementary-school-sees-regions-first-student-case-of-covid-19/wcm/56aeb5b1-267c-436c-b633-a9b006d5c22c/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/amherstburg-elementary-school-sees-regions-first-student-case-of-covid-19/wcm/56aeb5b1-267c-436c-b633-a9b006d5c22c/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/16/school-covid-19-protocols-working-far/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/first-covid-case-elementary-student-windsor-essex-reaction-1.5727206
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/first-covid-case-elementary-student-windsor-essex-reaction-1.5727206
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/naloxone-kits-drop-in-distribution-windsor-essex-1.5725857
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/morning-drive-windsor-regional-hospital-update-1.13513691?mode=Article
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/morning-drive-windsor-regional-hospital-update-1.13513691?mode=Article
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-officials-encourage-covid-19-testing-1.13515988

Local artist to honour frontline workers with massive mural

AMSO00, Sept. 17, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-artist-to-honour-front-line-workers-with-massive-mural-
1.13514911

Resident advocates introduced in Windsor-Essex career guidance initiative

Windsor Star, Sept. 17, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/resident-advocates-introduced-in-windsor-essex-career-guidance-
initiative

COVID-19 quarantine may keep us parents from seeing dying Windsor daughter

Windsor Star, Sept. 17, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-quarantine-may-keep-u-s-parents-from-seeing-dying-
windsor-daughter/wcm/c7117548-50f7-4862-albc-afe1394654b5/

Cottage trip, restaurant outing led to another COVID-19 cluster in Windsor-Essex says health unit

Windsor Star, Sept. 17, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-
windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/

WECHU still looking for safe consumption site location
CTV Windsor, Sept. 17, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-still-looking-for-safe-consumption-site-location-1.5109937

20 COVID-19 cases linked to new cluster in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 17, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/20-covid-19-cases-linked-to-new-cluster-in-windsor-essex-1.5108775

Time running out for dying Windsor woman to see parents stuck in 14-day quarantine

CBC Windsor, Sept. 17, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/calls-for-improved-family-reunification-process-border-closure-
1.5728408

20 cases connected to new community cluster in Windsor-Essex
Blackburn News, Sept. 17, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/17/20-cases-connected-new-community-cluster-

windsor-essex/

Medical Officer of Health concerned about culture of hate, blame during pandemic
Windsor Star, Sept. 24, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/moh-concerned-about-culture-of-hate-blame-during-pandemic

Three new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 24, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5118210

No Windsor-Essex pharmacies on first list for COVID-19 testing
CTV Windsor, Sept. 24, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-windsor-essex-pharmacies-on-first-list-for-covid-19-testing-1.5117015

Page 6 of 13


https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-artist-to-honour-front-line-workers-with-massive-mural-1.13514911
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-artist-to-honour-front-line-workers-with-massive-mural-1.13514911
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/resident-advocates-introduced-in-windsor-essex-career-guidance-initiative
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/resident-advocates-introduced-in-windsor-essex-career-guidance-initiative
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-quarantine-may-keep-u-s-parents-from-seeing-dying-windsor-daughter/wcm/c7117548-50f7-4862-a1bc-afe1394654b5/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-quarantine-may-keep-u-s-parents-from-seeing-dying-windsor-daughter/wcm/c7117548-50f7-4862-a1bc-afe1394654b5/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-still-looking-for-safe-consumption-site-location-1.5109937
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/20-covid-19-cases-linked-to-new-cluster-in-windsor-essex-1.5108775
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/calls-for-improved-family-reunification-process-border-closure-1.5728408
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/calls-for-improved-family-reunification-process-border-closure-1.5728408
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/17/20-cases-connected-new-community-cluster-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/17/20-cases-connected-new-community-cluster-windsor-essex/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/moh-concerned-about-culture-of-hate-blame-during-pandemic
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5118210
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-windsor-essex-pharmacies-on-first-list-for-covid-19-testing-1.5117015

Wait times increase for COVID-19 test results in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 24, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wait-times-increase-for-covid-19-test-results-in-windsor-essex-1.5118427

Video: COVID-19 tests delayed, but not testing
CTV Windsor, Sept. 24, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipld=2042806

Ontario changing COVID-19 testing guidelines
Blackburn News, Sept. 24, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/24/ontario-changing-covid-19-testing-

guidelines/

Lag in COVID-19 test turnaround
Blackburn News, Sept. 24, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/24/lag-covid-19-test-turn-around/

Coronavirus: Toronto nurse speaks about caring for Canada’s first COVID-19 patient

Global News - September 25, 2020

Clarice Shen was just three months into her new career at Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre when she was
assigned to care for ...

Simcoe hospital to offer drive-thru COVID-19 tests

The Hamilton Spectator - September 24, 2020

Norfolk General Hospital is busy hiring nurses as the Simcoe hospital prepares to open a drive-thru COVID-19
test centre. Vice-...

Ontario doctors urge Doug Ford to tighten restrictions again before it's too late

BlogTO - September 24, 2020

issued by the Ontario Hospital Association Thursday morning. The association, comprised of doctors and
leaders from major ...

COVID-19 and the decolonization of Indigenous public health

Hospital News - September 24, 2020

Indigenous self-determination, leadership and knowledge have helped protect Indigenous communities in
Canada during the coronavirus disease...

in Canada during the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic, and these principles should be
incorporated ...

More testing capacity needed for kids being sent home with COVID-19 symptoms, parent says

CBC.CA News - September 24, 2020

less than a week. And while Pettigrew said he contacted the Thunder Bay Regional Health Sciences Centre
(TBRHSC) for a test last ...

WRH prepared to second wave of COVID
AMSO00, Sept. 24, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-prepared-for-second-wave-of-covid-1.13572080

Page 7 of 13


https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wait-times-increase-for-covid-19-test-results-in-windsor-essex-1.5118427
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2042806
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/24/ontario-changing-covid-19-testing-guidelines/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/24/ontario-changing-covid-19-testing-guidelines/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/24/lag-covid-19-test-turn-around/
http://link.newsletter.meltwater.com/ls/click?upn=71xMbLltPw3x7YLp3OwqA-2FjMXofhAQFOy-2BiUBD3w65TMuYxAdz6BTqjoWHpKJ0KDfS57PH92qZLmMPwpzmOpS4Pz0sgYXEZBFTLvREG1LkrUHv2363f1iSzheoiKaj2DLWItWfFUQdkANSYgpbvQHeIJq-2FlbDLZEgXr9K34K7Ihi0nH98kMY-2BO-2FGuDuR8peCG33rRD2FL5fEEbeDv9bmcHHqZbEioBb-2B2E7dbL-2Fy7ylRRujHycnSvPQfU8YvpTpILmZtH-2FxjkYjAyRpyRziom6DRgSJt678tbU-2BHX1w8sjRQj17Zt-2FcxjnO0P5F6ss-2BK6SAjkVuipPxODGnP-2BYWpirgEw4yrNhlAWrHmk9zw-2BrUoOHGgUSimViWL3r1x2qcBy0yXya5O1XCnViGrqWAJZUKmd4-2FB7-2F6QZ4qrxI5Ke44QFNSUa-2Fw6h-2FciHvdlMz7G6BGp-2B1ARJ5unGQFiei3cAdnU-2F84bUClwaqtudfggV8n-2Ba0sJ8EFkQSQsXTT3bhkenvBAmMr-2BmQhgxKo0Mb4vVW-2FGG9q5oM26WpOuiuFPTjsX8N4rexZFHmfgT61-2B2ldqnWnn4rPj3RV3auoy-2BjYprwr3HhWzEb5gEeuS3aP6-2Bwl2xhf-2BzRS5pPS6Ywnr-2Fz2ep3CmOOBbbf768NBsHyuVUk2pEFG9zEicSyC3gCedaYlN0ep3bcn1dohZakq7CcteqaUD0ZLT5eHC58wfmToY4FSqlF32-2BS4lcav5TnzJbXk-3DNs7K_-2FzMNmpKtKCTJvFI43f741H-2FGR9C6vRTWIyJqcF5K8-2FuL0ReYZFBeN7sEi-2B-2FzUe4VsgbLzOue04Xxm3JHlj9sGXNq5veEb0UQVwBIEHb97Z8bCp-2BOCsUb3AxpnP1sMa8m6A8M-2FjQkkOcVubVJxw47yVWV77pHhX3r0YztwsN9gI-2FtEJTb-2FL-2B1KROuCe4NgAoL-2BcljoV6dc8I1RAnV1EPdDrR6JsC67RHXFoF1MUE90PwdD4s3yipsBhDDP6GHmDmwB6dMeVWDkOETWkA2ic50XUSiSCZB5k5DqDmqjT4uww61VUrAi7o6BYLCSYFDPW84FbqhrPUpUGY8Y3XRc08q08dp-2B4e43rwXn24Y3qhOLiNib-2BcdUL-2FtlkvlSmBDHbqUuwpXG1cA-2BQN0Rk0M1so2tA-3D-3D
http://link.newsletter.meltwater.com/ls/click?upn=71xMbLltPw3x7YLp3OwqA-2FjMXofhAQFOy-2BiUBD3w65TMuYxAdz6BTqjoWHpKJ0KDfS57PH92qZLmMPwpzmOpSyLKtcjCqU3-2BY6weQA4URUr6yQLAkE6yxx0xzVL2gYJ6CHxU1Bd40YD9CYubrlIAB-2BT1XQ-2Bbp7ohKGbkKxQYO4AGS3-2BGQr47DSTsS2E0C8LhFTtbQcEH0XVT4XOmwb6LnG2rhsCs1mOrTdTNzHFqcTlWPpl239iEvv1gSEmh3aLusqiZVCDKCydu-2FDQhMdqOc7QEdO9V0N7eS75M2WbKfW8XbRG3Jngp-2BTp65wNjgNRJWDZtoVb5hDkHn-2BqvzSJ5TVavYaxcdaaoR7MufqRBGtwP51oaXmSrYOYSdazDqETe82vz5OaYM8zoKOvgPj1tcMFxeQU-2BSJE-2Bb1aNymaVDCjmvHL1CtBgBbliSi53m5foMaUyBFTJAYbz8zqboqP7zDVyPoQhLHXEj9C1umDWgjh-2BsSaFH3g10pUrHVwdnA5jjVqvYY-2BaYJtUGdBqdPEHE5-2FVfVlzGNED3KYTqrooR-2F0A9Gfc0ECE0Xwm6RkB-2B7KDFffHpQ3QMn8K9XNGqQLG-2ByDoSt0xo8q0UA66iG1WoQim0Ov9E8r2wa-2Blp8Pz7TJuLT-2BnK7Yq9GEWK7QV9y3NpSsoNkvNHHhYgVvZPsZm5NDGBLH6p157r3WDqY1F7OYY1YKbUb5KDSI2-2B2vPb9PJcXxycA7ecbFsMQhmNpI3ZOKW0guY3PVu-2FDxZOOP6tcj-2F9n-2FKW18r-2FiobAHPiCduQng-3D-3DF_An_-2FzMNmpKtKCTJvFI43f741H-2FGR9C6vRTWIyJqcF5K8-2FuL0ReYZFBeN7sEi-2B-2FzUe4VsgbLzOue04Xxm3JHlj9sGXNq5veEb0UQVwBIEHb97Z8bCp-2BOCsUb3AxpnP1sMa8m6A8M-2FjQkkOcVubVJxw47yVWV77pHhX3r0YztwsN9gI-2FtEJTb-2FL-2B1KROuCe4NgAoL5zWgaE8w3jza2KIyGCk0adfQt2QbvEmZPfWiQeEJY-2BkaU7fC9cYEl-2BMz-2BE8OpSLdjR4dMVsxd54l5HNc-2B3FV2h4aPrjfrq0goahjvp3XM8-2BKaguRlsZQ6iU91OI-2BU1vAEhju3u075Np2fzV5BmhnFT3DeuiNgCdcyisRXPmXxzy5uvO3FYxkokuZJyvrGeLxiTwKaW1yhS2-2FsNIbzYHfvw-3D-3D
http://link.newsletter.meltwater.com/ls/click?upn=71xMbLltPw3x7YLp3OwqA-2FjMXofhAQFOy-2BiUBD3w65TMuYxAdz6BTqjoWHpKJ0KDfS57PH92qZLmMPwpzmOpS3EOEqwvgHdbkvvuN7UOBxQl7a6KzVy2NMV55A6r8v9ATVrG-2FAWG3vMcnbzvYdvyKg-2FlKt-2Fn2x07WqelmSKcq0jp4zzha3IPGsU42KZhaLTjxEF82ePNqMQ85YZHTg0iBLVc03DYyYoaX41ej95mjYgFYXqdCsARkT8R7zypUEaRuZcwW2ZA9r4GTTs9Ze3s0Ea0h1ZGxrI33j2ZcOtxhhUwD1UtRMDdgU-2BhtxXKbaVuZgwRrv6JrHXBI2oV6ZbV-2FXeB4h1MBOjDpOF2LMlZ3-2Bu-2BcvmTZYTnxeHA3ebqX0gBnzWPo-2B8FlVCOxbyWODNbfDi2EggPcNMOlgUIDToB1opNCw6H9X0-2FF2Jr-2BAg4mX3-2Ffj1ZvJA0BNBRc-2BUBkIWRlr3o4ByXwDGuSjq7M7-2BfR6gZ-2Byh2FyOTT-2FL4QcNkOjrRLpP6xYaqlS1gy0LdaV4n6vmu-2BCUuxSWw2FATODOWt-2FzJjdMvYhr4IwzJgWEqZ2yMXrrXsSGah8YpjTv3Fw0Krtden3xuWJO3JYKl8W324Ki01lRNvOKCaiiVhu2sVFm-2BYr4oR3i17RBPAl57IqXML-2BhAcWvcB1IBEt6lK-2Fsd0QfdXxxoYUnDyGsxTwsiMrRG53Y0StsIyreImCvmoFACU3kvub17UgLa8yo4iy6hSKU-3DtA1N_-2FzMNmpKtKCTJvFI43f741H-2FGR9C6vRTWIyJqcF5K8-2FuL0ReYZFBeN7sEi-2B-2FzUe4VsgbLzOue04Xxm3JHlj9sGXNq5veEb0UQVwBIEHb97Z8bCp-2BOCsUb3AxpnP1sMa8m6A8M-2FjQkkOcVubVJxw47yVWV77pHhX3r0YztwsN9gI-2FtEJTb-2FL-2B1KROuCe4NgAoLqehvpbMjMOGgPRkmgbbPT-2BrInNLY8K9Nt2AzIzYD7U8RPH-2FPjW0KrMABan8BCihUuQyOlo8NyJjV03ghc88kxOEGZjXcn7yg0iyv2NbUC6f1FbsbqbKPREgv708RidrQKZv8w8qMHSb2yVpxLwFxfCte8MRq-2FUJVaf6gtQ5y9Z-2BeaOK-2BrN7WfbnV5r4cybLy85XMKG5Ku8XgyZ2-2Bu-2BHNow-3D-3D
http://link.newsletter.meltwater.com/ls/click?upn=71xMbLltPw3x7YLp3OwqA-2FjMXofhAQFOy-2BiUBD3w65TMuYxAdz6BTqjoWHpKJ0KDfS57PH92qZLmMPwpzmOpS4-2BcpYyKsKhtL3hqLXbtH78bMN879aYdPZIIheGfddI7daNq7tKDoCw573kr12-2B6w-2B3c9a0Ja653tAMnrSG6ftyTp5ChK9DhESZT4KQA3UxqW-2Ff970a3hI01Xp-2Ff0hhwgobgeeuUIiLasuBWFEA99d-2BIcBdAccRIzgoUGoFA9WP-2FfmS7RvWihNURU2MP19bNPVZtSFgEb47TYqrxTsM5zgeN3N1HD0WsoA8O9vlZtd-2By-2F0GHmzZVR-2F9JGbcLw4scwio6jUn7tovgimRYatzwljiBHdao8isxpFnY-2FmloeP-2Bu7Tpm6TFX3U-2FXkGy-2FY-2B4AvFfpIG1C9-2FIF-2BhxXgXXt3WCK2-2BYwvx-2FkhyfJu-2BjNI1cgrAKkn1-2Bhml-2FfO4Cve0lBxWyL1AqIhhUQAHzUQ4aVaUUkK-2FOAbcYmu3nms6xzbbp-2BBAQommtAJ1B5et51xUXxifH3Lg-2BzBb-2FW2HGm5cBmveCJ5wB4a7yKHCJBDStIQ6iIefzPtnTsOoU2HEqCChqoNunx7Ewgh7ttrOQVRpfEd07tuVV3FfJMTTHSLvET8WDC98Ajefgt9X9VkDnnA8Nc0iQoV92EkA6tY58gu5fmRUsKkfX-2BgnggHgEMJvHxD4-2FiaXkPLtFa7fV8UDZ56paiVXxKkhD3nO9Sq44w3y3Dymm6FzsfdSb7X0APM8i-2F-2FCq3_D1Y_-2FzMNmpKtKCTJvFI43f741H-2FGR9C6vRTWIyJqcF5K8-2FuL0ReYZFBeN7sEi-2B-2FzUe4VsgbLzOue04Xxm3JHlj9sGXNq5veEb0UQVwBIEHb97Z8bCp-2BOCsUb3AxpnP1sMa8m6A8M-2FjQkkOcVubVJxw47yVWV77pHhX3r0YztwsN9gI-2FtEJTb-2FL-2B1KROuCe4NgAoLMdBpEuR-2FL6gjGg-2BqjJJ6HSgXdRQ4cFCIixjh26goo8bGoCNcG7f2ZcEnK-2Fnx3rB0IbAyHZux2pz59-2FAwNJyfW25-2FMkDaY1ZUb3RhlZT-2FM3QNt1SyuHjhu8KFjJ8P3ujBJi363GRyE0dd8MLzh4LhhDiNcFnR0SHXWKtU23wo6ciPJoymWlLyWDNNSxFxLcOiDuEs5n3qg0C5n9W-2BveuD3Q-3D-3D
http://link.newsletter.meltwater.com/ls/click?upn=71xMbLltPw3x7YLp3OwqA-2FjMXofhAQFOy-2BiUBD3w65QjAHAdIvQGd0dCvR7guY9r6V-2BHJFOxtWAWe09bVeBGrIOACK2IPWmonbVnLF90IR4yEpJfTGgc9tAsCdbG90RsqiuokGbz3zPSSXBDbqdQmuYztsKZWj0hd0-2BBVNR1l7-2FYZGexODr-2FvgPG4ZEvy6adjOod1Cz7-2FhPocQUaN3ZQ-2B0sRsKWt0EuCGUwaQtCTB6Y-3DJL1x_-2FzMNmpKtKCTJvFI43f741H-2FGR9C6vRTWIyJqcF5K8-2FuL0ReYZFBeN7sEi-2B-2FzUe4VsgbLzOue04Xxm3JHlj9sGXNq5veEb0UQVwBIEHb97Z8bCp-2BOCsUb3AxpnP1sMa8m6A8M-2FjQkkOcVubVJxw47yVWV77pHhX3r0YztwsN9gI-2FtEJTb-2FL-2B1KROuCe4NgAoLMdBpEuR-2FL6gjGg-2BqjJJ6Hfnvwd2pNFKos71d5Y2M-2FC-2Fl37Fl4jzJ39p10H-2BwhFc36CqnpFweJ5CTRQVV9TjZhbGgOD8plW0uprqSaN-2Bl4Jj9UHcDIoDyYaKAbceswk6Qdk25hwd3CH5fouYuoEdnVNrQ4D22Ji-2Fbi-2BHZFqoRGE56RQsIJpWtN8g4eqA0neWKM47Qc2b8FWait06c5Rh42w-3D-3D
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wrh-prepared-for-second-wave-of-covid-1.13572080

2 new cases as province pushes flu shots
CBC Windsor, Sept. 23, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-sept-23-1.5735218

Jarvis: No escaping hospital question in Ward 7 byelection
Windsor Star, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-no-escaping-hospital-question-in-ward-7-byelection

Reader letter: Patient grateful for recent hospital care
Windsor Star, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-patient-grateful-for-recent-hospital-care

Health unit offers new virtual learning support for teachers
Windsor Star, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-offers-new-virtual-learning-support-for-teachers

ESHC wants public input on possible new chemotherapy service

Windsor Star, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-wants-public-input-on-possible-new-
chemotherapy-service

Three new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5118210

No Windsor-Essex pharmacies on first list for COVID-19 testing
CTC Windsor, Sept. 22, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-windsor-essex-pharmacies-on-first-list-for-covid-19-testing-1.5117015

Two new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex agri farm sector
CTV Windsor, Sept. 23, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/two-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-agri-farm-sector-1.5116455

WECHU identifies two new cases of COVID-19
Blackburn News, Sept. 23, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/23/wechu-identifies-two-new-cases-covid-19/

Two additional cases of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex
AMSO00, Sept. 23, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/2-additional-cases-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-1.13565797

Windsor man, 34, has this message for his peers as COVID-19 lands him in hospital
CBC Windsor, Sept. 23, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/young-covid-19-patient-recovering-1.5734240

Covid-19 confusion prompts new communications strategy at GECDSB

AMB800, Sept. 23, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-confusion-prompts-new-communications-strategy-at-
gecdsb-1.13565305

Page 8 of 13


https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-sept-23-1.5735218
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-no-escaping-hospital-question-in-ward-7-byelection
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-patient-grateful-for-recent-hospital-care
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-offers-new-virtual-learning-support-for-teachers
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-wants-public-input-on-possible-new-chemotherapy-service
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/erie-shores-healthcare-wants-public-input-on-possible-new-chemotherapy-service
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5118210
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/no-windsor-essex-pharmacies-on-first-list-for-covid-19-testing-1.5117015
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/two-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-agri-farm-sector-1.5116455
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/23/wechu-identifies-two-new-cases-covid-19/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/2-additional-cases-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-1.13565797
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/young-covid-19-patient-recovering-1.5734240
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-confusion-prompts-new-communications-strategy-at-gecdsb-1.13565305
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-confusion-prompts-new-communications-strategy-at-gecdsb-1.13565305

Health unit reports no in-school COVID transmission so far
Windsor Star, Sept. 23, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-no-in-school-covid-transmission-so-far

Long road to recovery for COVID survivor
AMSO00, Sept. 22, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/long-road-to-recovery-for-covid-survivor-1.13554324

COVID-19 'long-haulers' hit back against non-believers
CBC Windsor, Sept. 23, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-long-lasting-symptoms-windsor-essex-1.5732872

COVID-19 'long-haulers' hit back against non-believers
CBC Windsor, Sept. 21, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-long-lasting-symptoms-windsor-essex-1.5732872

Windsor mayor thanks long-term care homes for work fighting COVID-19

Windsor Star, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-thanks-long-term-care-homes-for-work-fighting-
covid-19/wcm/706df606-0d0c-4520-ba0b-c7bc33be7f96/

Immediate action expected for those who break new gathering limits

AMBSO00, Sept. 21, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/immediate-action-expected-for-those-who-break-new-gathering-
limits-1.13551286

Tightened restrictions on social gatherings warranted, Medical Officer of Health says

Windsor Star, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/tightened-restrictions-on-social-gatherings-warranted-moh-says

Mayor appeals for feds to fund city-run isolation centre for migrant workers

Windsor Star, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-appeals-for-feds-to-fund-city-run-isolation-centre-for-
migrant-workers

Community group reaches milestone in creating handmade masks
Windsor Star, Sept. 21, 2020

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/community-group-reaches-milestone-in-creating-hand-made-masks/wcm/12a55739-efd0-4fbc-9854-

€5c696b67965/

Long road to recovery for COVID survivor
CTV Windsor, Sept. 21 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/long-road-to-recovery-for-covid-survivor-1.5114055

Seven new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex
CTV Windsor, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/seven-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5113193

Seven new cases of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex

Blackburn News, Sept. 21, 2020

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/seven-new-cases-covid-19-windsor-essex/
Page 9 of 13



https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-no-in-school-covid-transmission-so-far
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/long-road-to-recovery-for-covid-survivor-1.13554324
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-long-lasting-symptoms-windsor-essex-1.5732872
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid19-long-lasting-symptoms-windsor-essex-1.5732872
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-thanks-long-term-care-homes-for-work-fighting-covid-19/wcm/706df606-0d0c-4520-ba0b-c7bc33be7f96/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-mayor-thanks-long-term-care-homes-for-work-fighting-covid-19/wcm/706df606-0d0c-4520-ba0b-c7bc33be7f96/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/immediate-action-expected-for-those-who-break-new-gathering-limits-1.13551286
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/immediate-action-expected-for-those-who-break-new-gathering-limits-1.13551286
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/tightened-restrictions-on-social-gatherings-warranted-moh-says
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-appeals-for-feds-to-fund-city-run-isolation-centre-for-migrant-workers
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-appeals-for-feds-to-fund-city-run-isolation-centre-for-migrant-workers
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/community-group-reaches-milestone-in-creating-hand-made-masks/wcm/12a55739-efd0-4fbc-9854-e5c696b67965/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/community-group-reaches-milestone-in-creating-hand-made-masks/wcm/12a55739-efd0-4fbc-9854-e5c696b67965/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/long-road-to-recovery-for-covid-survivor-1.5114055
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/seven-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5113193
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/seven-new-cases-covid-19-windsor-essex/

Windsor car meetup draws dozens despite smaller gathering size rules
CBC Windsor, Sept. 21, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/car-meet-up-covid-19-outdoor-restriction-gatherings-1.5733095

Reader letter: Utilization of beds in new hospital must be done right
Windsor Star, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-utilization-of-beds-in-new-hospital-must-be-done-right

Windsor-Essex Ontario health team sends off final proposal

AMBS00, Sept. 18, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-
1.13523948

Canadian Slovak Villa donates 50,000 to help babies born with jaundice
Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-

jaundice

Jarvis: A must-read COVID-19 top-10 list
Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-a-must-read-covid-19-top-10-list

Ontario health-care worker returns home six months after testing positive for COVID-19
CBC Windsor, Sept 20, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/torry-robertson-lasalle-comes-home-covid-1.5730677

Cottage trip restaurant outing led to another COVID-19 cluster in Windsor-Essex says health unit

Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-
windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/

Reduce close contacts to keep Windsor-Essex COVID-19 numbers low says health unit

Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-
low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/

Public board reports first case of COVID-19
Blackburn News, Sept. 21, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/public-board-reports-first-case-covid-19/

COVID-19 case reported at French Catholic school
Blackburn News, Sept. 18, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-

school/

One new COVID-19 case reported in Windsor-Essex
Blackburn News, Sept. 20, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-

essex/

Page 10 of 13


https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/car-meet-up-covid-19-outdoor-restriction-gatherings-1.5733095
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-utilization-of-beds-in-new-hospital-must-be-done-right
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-1.13523948
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-1.13523948
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-jaundice
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-jaundice
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-a-must-read-covid-19-top-10-list
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/torry-robertson-lasalle-comes-home-covid-1.5730677
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/public-board-reports-first-case-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-essex/

Just one new case of COVID-19 Sunday
AMSO00, Sept. 20, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-one-new-case-of-covid-19-sunday-1.13538335

New COVID-19 case count drops to one: WECHU
CTV Windsor, Sept. 20, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/new-covid-19-case-count-drops-to-one-wechu-1.5112459

Outpouring of help a lifesaver for migrant worker diagnosed with lymphoma

Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outpouring-of-help-a-lifesaver-for-migrant-worker-diagnosed-with-
lymphoma

Windsor-Essex Ontario health team sends off final proposal

AMB00, Sept. 18, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-
1.13523948

Canadian Slovak Villa donates 50,000 to help babies born with jaundice
Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-

jaundice

Jarvis: A must-read COVID-19 top-10 list
Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-a-must-read-covid-19-top-10-list

Cottage trip restaurant outing led to another COVID-19 cluster in Windsor-Essex says health unit

Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-
windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/

Reduce close contacts to keep Windsor-Essex COVID-19 numbers low says health unit

Windsor Star, Sept. 18, 2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-
low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/

Ontario health-care worker returns home six months after testing positive for COVID-19

CBC Windsor, Sept 20, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/torry-robertson-lasalle-comes-home-covid-1.5730677
Kingsville high school reports COVID-19 cases: GECDSB

CTV Windsor, Sept. 21, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/kingsville-high-school-reports-covid-19-case-gecdsb-1.5113070

Kingsville District High School has first COVID-19 case
CBC Windsor, Sept. 21, 2020
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/kingsville-district-high-school-covid19-case-1.5732205

Page 11 of 13


https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-one-new-case-of-covid-19-sunday-1.13538335
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/new-covid-19-case-count-drops-to-one-wechu-1.5112459
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outpouring-of-help-a-lifesaver-for-migrant-worker-diagnosed-with-lymphoma
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/outpouring-of-help-a-lifesaver-for-migrant-worker-diagnosed-with-lymphoma
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-1.13523948
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-ontario-health-team-sends-off-final-proposal-1.13523948
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-jaundice
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/canadian-slovak-villa-donates-50000-to-help-babies-born-with-jaundice
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-a-must-read-covid-19-top-10-list
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/cottage-trip-restaurant-outing-led-to-another-covid-19-cluster-in-windsor-essex-says-health-unit/wcm/a29f55b6-7e7a-4b2b-96fc-9ddd62660334/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/reduce-close-contacts-to-keep-windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-low-says-health-unit/wcm/2b096ca2-4f4e-44de-a53f-bd15ec45f209/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/torry-robertson-lasalle-comes-home-covid-1.5730677
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/kingsville-high-school-reports-covid-19-case-gecdsb-1.5113070
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/kingsville-district-high-school-covid19-case-1.5732205

Public board reports first case of COVID-19
Blackburn News, Sept. 21, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/public-board-reports-first-case-covid-19/

COVID-19 case reported at French Catholic school
Blackburn News, Sept. 18, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-

school/

One new COVID-19 case reported in Windsor-Essex
Blackburn News, Sept. 20, 2020
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-

essex/

Just one new case of COVID-19 Sunday
AMB00, Sept. 20, 2020
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-one-new-case-of-covid-19-sunday-1.13538335

New COVID-19 case count drops to one: WECHU
CTV Windsor, Sept. 20, 2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/new-covid-19-case-count-drops-to-one-wechu-1.5112459

One new case of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex as of Sunday
Windsorite.ca, Sept. 20, 2020
https://windsorite.ca/2020/09/1-new-case-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-as-of-sunday/

ONLINE COMMUNICATION REPORT
Social Media

WEB:

Users:

47,000 users this month, up 4.6%from last month
New Users: 66.8%

Average view time: 1 m 48 s, down 5%

How do people access the site?
Mobile: 51.5% down 7.3%
Desktop: 44.9%, up 12.1%
Tablet: 3.6%, down 12.2%

Top pages:
1) Home Page — 24,657
2) COVID Assessment Centre — 12,970
3) Coronavirus — 10,673
4) Emergency Wait times —9,219
5) Careers—5,414
6) Contact Us— 3,277

Page 12 of 13


https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/21/public-board-reports-first-case-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/18/covid-19-case-reported-french-catholic-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/09/20/one-new-covid-19-case-reported-windsor-essex/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-one-new-case-of-covid-19-sunday-1.13538335
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/new-covid-19-case-count-drops-to-one-wechu-1.5112459
http://windsorite.ca/
https://windsorite.ca/2020/09/1-new-case-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-as-of-sunday/

7) Pharmacy login— 2,537
8) Pharmacy dept —2,216
9) COVID-19 Visitation 1,938

Top Languages other than English:
1) Chinese (zh.cn) - 146
2) French -60

YOUTUBE:
Views: 3,100 views
Watch Time: 162 hours

Top Videos
1) Guidelines for basic adult neurological observation — 680 views

2) Cameo shout out from James Pickens Jr. —284 views
3) Quick Dams to prevent flooding — 266 views

4) FIT Test Demonstration — 145 views

5) Negative Pressure Rooms-at WRH 138

FACEBOOK: 8,308 followers +51

1,554 page views —down 34%

29,710 monthly reach —down 21%

13,914 people “engaged” on our site - commented or liked our posts this month, up 13%
20,064 videos viewed, down 19%

Top Posts:

1) COVID-19 Assessment Centre Open at SportsPlex 9,191 reached, 199 reactions
2) Suicide Prevention Day 5,171 reached, 131 reactions

3) Ice Cream (Anti) Social — 3,494 reached, 279reactions

4) Joanne Barbera-Sheehan Retires — 2,619 reached, 168 reactions

5) COVID-Assessment Centre at SportsPlex —2,454 reached, 22 reactions

INSTAGRAM - 2,688
Top Posts:
1) Ice cream (anti)social — 159 likes
2) Low Wait times at — 36 likes
3) Assessment Centre opens at SportsPlex — 31 likes

TWITTER:

4,016, +53 this month
Impressions: 53.6K up 2.5%%
Tweets: 33 up 13.9%

Trending topics:
1) Ice Cream (anti)social —3996 impressions, 118 engagements
2) COVID Testing at St. Clair College — 3,077 impressions, 30 engagements
3) Joanne Barbera-Sheehan retires — 2,677 impressions, 131 engagements
4) COVID Test available —2,668impressions, 55 engagements
5) World Suicide Prevention day —1,853 impressions, 52 engagements

Page 13 of 13



	201001 agenda
	Tab A
	Strategic Plan Report to the Board of Directors
	Tab B
	200903 minutes
	Tab C
	CEO report October 2020 (002)
	Tab D
	Schulich Oct 2020
	Tab E
	Financial Results - August 31 2020 (for October 1 2020 Board Meeting)
	Treasurer's Report - August 31 2020 (for Board of Directors Meeting - October 1 2020)
	Tab F
	FinAudResources_MinutesGEN20200921
	6.1 Monthly Operating Results Report - August 31 2020 (amended) - append to minutes
	Tab G
	Media Report October 2020



